City of Rio Communities Council Regular Business Meeting
City Council Chambers - 360 Rio Communities Blvd

Rio Communities, NM 87002

Monday, December 08, 2025 6:00 PM

Agenda

Please silence alf electronic devices.

Mavor - foshug Ramsel!
Mayor Pro Tem - Lawrence R. Gordon
Council - Arthur Apodaca, Thomas Nelson, Matthew Marquez
Call to Order
Pledge of Allegiance
Roll Call
Approval of Agenda
SWEARING IN DEPUTY MUNICIPAL CLERK PATRICIA MCCLOSKEY

Consent Agenda
1. Approval of Accounts Payable

Public Comment: If you wish to speak during the public comment session, the Council will allow each member of the public to three
(3} minutes to address the Council. Both the public and Council will follow rules of decorurn. Give your name and where you live. The
public will direct comments to the City Council. Comment(s) will not be disruptive or derogatory.

The Council will not take action or engage in discussion regarding the comments made or received, but when appropriate the matters
raised may be referred to staff or others for further review. Both the public and Council will follow rules of decorum. Comsments or
matters under litigation will not be allowed and any person or parsons addressing the Council are liable for their own staternents.

Manager Report

Action ltems
2.  Discussion, Consideration, and Decision — Date and Time for Ribbon Cutting Ceremony for Founders Way.
3. Discussion, Consideration, and Decision — Approval of Official 2026 Holiday Calander.
4.  Discussion, Consideration, and Decision — Approval of 2026 City Council Meeting Schedule.

Discussion, Consideration, and Decision — Approval of Library Board Recommendations.

Discussion, Consideration, and Decision — Approval of Update of Organizational Structure.

Nooon

Discussion, Consideration, and Decision — Approval of Budget Adjustment Resolution 2025-32, Accepting
Additional Revenue and Expenses into the Library Budget.

8.  Discussion, Consideration, and Decision — Approval of Budget Adjustment Resolution 2025-36, Creating a
Veterans Memorial Fund as Other Special Revenue and Expenses.

9.  Discussion, Consideration, and Decision — Approval of Resolution 2025-33 Two Hundred
Thousand Dollars and no cents ($200,000), to Plan, Design, Construct and Equip Street Lights
in Rio Communities in Valencia County.

10.  Discussion, Consideration, and Decision — Approval of Resolution 2025-34 Seven Hundred
Thousand Dollars and No cents ($700,000), to Acquire Land and to Pian, Design, Construct,
Furnish and Equip a Public Works Complex in Rio Communities in Valencia County.

11.  Discussion, Consideration, and Decision — Approval of Resolution 2025-35 Eight Hundred
Seventy Thousand Dollars and No cents, (870,000), to Purchase and Equip Vehicles and
Equipment, including Ambulances for the Police and Fire Departments in Rio Coramunities in
Valencia County. '
Executive Session - Pursuant to NMSA 1978 §10-15-1 (1){2} and NMSA 1978 §10-15-1. (H){2) Limited Personnel Matters, for the Purpose
of Candidate Review for the Position of Chief of Police; and for the Purpose of Appointment of Municipal Clerk. For the purpose of
discussion of the purchase, addition or disposal of real property or water rights by the public body pursuant to NMSA 10-15-1(H)}8) Na
Action will be Taken at this Meeting
* Motion and roll call vote to go into close session
* Motion and roll call vote to go back into the regular business meeting session
* Welcome everyone back and statement by the Mayor:
Action ltems
12. Discussion, Consideration, and Decision — Approval of Appointment of Municipal Clerk.
Council Discussion
Our Next Scheduled regular meeting will be Monday January 8, 2026
Adjourn

Please join us from the comfort and safety of your own home by entering the following link: @
https://www.facebook.com/riocommunities

NQTE: THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO REVISION UP TO 72 HOURS PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED MEETING DATE AND TIME (NMSA 10-15-1 F). A COPY QF THE
AGENDA MAY BE PICKED UP AT CITY HALL, 360 RIO COMMUNITIES BLVD, RIO COMMUNITIES, NM 87002. IF YGU ARE AN INDIVIDUAL WITH A DISABILITY
WHO IS [N NEED OF A READER, AMPLIFIER, QUALIFIED SIGN LANGUAGE INTERPRETER OR ANY OTHER FORM OF AUXILIARY AND OR SERVICE TO ATTEND OR
PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING, PLEASE CONTACT THE MUNICIPAL CLERK AT 505-861-6803 AT LEAST ONE WEEK PRIOR TO THE MEETING OR AS SO0ON AS

POSSIBLE.



Rio Communities, NM

Expense Approval Register
Packet: APPKT01741 - AP 12.3.25

Vendor Name Payable Number Post Data Description {Item) Account Number Amount
Fund: 11000 - General Operating Fund
DBC Waters LLC 10/23/2025 11/25/2025 Bottled Water Delivery SVS 11000-2002-56060 8.65
DBC Waters LLC 11/06/2025 11/25/2025 Bottled Water Delivery SVS 11000-2002-56060 16.60
Sandra Schauer 11/24/2025 11/25/2025 Printing of RC news/postage 11000-2002-55929 9,196.79
Beasley, Mitchell & Co. LLP 90151705 12/02/2025 Accounting Professional Serv 11600-2002-55030 39,408.31
Maloy Mobile Storage inc. 0335409-IN 12/03/2025 40" Storage Container Serial¥  11000-5101-55959 243.68
PNM 0529680-3 12/03/2025 City Hall 11000-2002-57170 223.39
PNM 0529691-7 12/03/2025 City Hall 11000-2002-57170 98.90
PNM 0525692-6 12/03/2025 City Hall 11000-2002-57170 70821
PNM (548885-3 12/03/2025 City Hall 11000-2002-57170 56.86
PNM 0550841-2 12,/03/2025 City Hall 11000-2002-57170 162.35
PNM 0557144-1 12/03/2025 City Hall 11000-2002-57170 94.06
NM Gas Co 0702605-4 12/03/2025 Gas SV5 City Hall 11000-2002-57171 435.82
Storm Construction & Reme 0833 12/03/2025 fira department roof patch 11000-2002-54010 6,484.20
Tyler Business Forms 108017 12/03/2025 W2-1095 11000-2004-56020 568.94
WEX Bank 109063368 12/03/2025 Fleet Cards/PD+ Rebates & r 11800-3001-56120 958.65
WEX Bank 109063368 12/03/2025 Fleet Cards/PW 11000-5101-56120 368.93
DBC Waters LLC 11062025 12/03/2025 Bottled Water Delivery SVS 11000-2002-56060 16.60
Cooperative Educational Ser 112025 12/03/2025 Procurement Services FY242  11000-2002-55030 2,135.00
Cooperative Educationai Ser 13-003602 12/03/2025 Procurement Services FY242  11000-2002-55030 280.00
PNM 1382637-7 12/03/2025 Streetlights-Electricity-Utititi =~ 11000-5104-57170 236.26
RR Donnelley 156487158 12/03/2025 Traffic Citations Books gty 50 11060-3001-56030 1,951.00
Amazon Business 1RIR-KQUIP-DVYW 12/03/2025 Judge William's Personalized  11000-1009-5602¢ 41.42
Wells Fargo Financial Leasing  2025-1017-r1 12/03/2025 CH Server Lease 11000-2002-57130 138.09
T-Mobile USA Inc. 206307419 12/03/2025 Data SIM and Unlimited Data  11800-3001-55999 188.10
PNM 2318682-4 12/03/2025 City Hall 11000-2002-57170 40.44
TLC Uniforms 298989 12/03/2025 Class A Uniforms for Officers  11000-2001-56110 179.95
Airgas Inc 5519883940 12/03/2025 cvlinder lease renewal 11000-5101-57130 372.55
AC Disposal Services 588950468 12/03/2025 street sweeper repair 11000-5101-54040 2,839.30
Shred-it US IV LLC 8012699810 12/03/2025 Shredding SVS 11000-2002-55929 113.57
Valencia County Fiscal Office AC2026-23 12/03/2025 FY24-25 Animal Control 11000-3004-55999 1,985.85
Melloy Ford FOCS5110276 12/03/2025 UNIT 01-STEERING GEAR/NU  11000-3001-54040 4,858.00
NM Water Service Company  INV0006324 12/03/2025 CH Water Utilities 11000-2002-57173 453.79
WOLFCOM Enterprises S1-00008388 12/03/2025 Annual Service Maintenance  11000-3001-57150 2,350.00
NM EDGE 17694 12/04/2025 NM EDGE Final Finance Class  11000-2004-57050 595.00
Fund 11000 - General Operating Fund Total: 77,905.46
Fund: 20600 - Emergency Medical Services
Linde Gas & Equipment Inc. 53397548 12/03/2025 medical oxygen. Blanket P.O  20600-3003-56999 184 82
Fund 20600 - Emergency Medical Services Total: 184.82
Fund: 20900 - Fire Protection
PNM 0529640-9 12/03/2025 Fire Department 209056-3002-57170 616.21
NM Gas Co 0702605-4 12/03/2025 Gas SVSFD 20900-3002-57271 98.28
WEX Bank 109063368 12/03/2025 Fleet Cards/FD 20800-3002-56120 1,145.48
BRADY COMPANIES LLC 10931308 12/03/2025 tolitries 20500-3002-56050 105.48
PNM 1375856-5 12/03/2025 Fire Department 20800-3002-57170 118.99
Ray's Fire Extinguishers 14362 12/03/2025 yearly maintenance 20950-3002-5499% 975.00
UnigqueFleet, LEC. 25587 12/03/2025 maint service 1 20800-3002-54040 1,212.16
UniqueFleet, LLC. 25610 12/03/2025 admin service 20500-3002-54045 543.13
UnigueFleat, LLC. 25611 12/03/2025 mzintanance 20900-3002-54040 135,55
TLC Uniforms 207435 12/03/2025 uniforms open p.o 20906-3002-56110 658.77
Napa Auto Parts 568640 12/03/2025 open p.o. vehicle maintenan 20900-3002-54040 49.59
Napa Auto Parts 568773 12/03/2025 open p.o. vehicle maintenan  20900-3002-54040 25218
Artesia Fire Equipment Inc. 36327 12/03/2025 wildland tools 20500-3002-56030 803.26
12/4/2025 2:08:39 PM Page 1 of 4



Expense Approval Register

Packet: APPKT01741 - AP 12.3.25

Vendor Name Payable Number Post Date Description (ltem) Account Number Arnount
NM Water Service Company INVO0Q06324 12/03/2025 FD Water Utilities 20900-3002-57173 83.38
Fund 20900 - Fire Protection Total: 6,797.90
Fund: 21100 - Law Enforcement Protection
Dana Safety Supply 990406 12/03/2025 TAKE STAND OUT OF 22 EXPL  21100-0001-47110 652.00
Melloy Ford FOC511186 12/04/2025 QTY 1 NEW TIRE RCPD ADMI  21100-3001-54040 298.17
Fund 21100 - Law Enforcement Protection Total: 950.17
Fund: 29700 - County EMS GRT
WEX Bank 109063368 12/03/2025 Fleet Cards/EMS 29700-2002-56120 43.62
Fund 29700 - County EMS GRT Total: 43.62
Fund: 30400 - Road/Street Projects
HODR Engineering, Inc. 1200776802 11/24/2025 Damon street reconstruction  30400-2002-55030 8,644.00
HDR Engineering, Inc. 1200776670 12/03/2025 Don Diego road Reconstructi  30400-2002-55030 1,470.71
HDR Engineering, Inc. 1200776903 12/03/2025 Proj Mangmn,/Const Observa  30400-2002-58090 28,075.48
Fund 30400 - Road/Street Projects Total: 38,190.19
Fund: 39900 - Other Capital Projects
HDR Engineering, Inc. 12007765646 12/03/2025 Cn-Cail Engineering 39900-2002-55030 1,981.08
Fund 39900 - Other Capital Projects Total: 1,981.08
Grand Total: 126,053.24
12/4/2025 2:08:39 PM Page 2 of 4



Expense Approval Register

Fund

11800 - General Operating Fund

Fund Summary

20600 - Emergency Medical Services

20800 - Fire Protection

21100 - Law Enforcement Protection

29708 - County EMS GRT
30400 - Road/Street Projects
39900 - Other Capital Projects

Account Number

11000-1009-56020
11000-2002-54010
11000-2002-55030
11000-2002-55999
11000-2002-56060
12000-2002-57130
11000-2002-57170
11000-2002-57171
11000-2002-57173
11000-2004-56020
11000-2004-57050
11000-3001-54040
11000-3001-55599
11000-3001-56030
11000-3001-56110
11006-3001-56120
11000-3001-57150
13060-3004-55993
11000-5101-54040
11000-5101-55999
11000-5101-56120
11000-5101-57130
11000-5104-57170
20600-3003-55999
20800-3002-54040
20800-3002-54999
20900-3002-56030
20900-3002-56050
20900-3002-56110
20900-3002-56120
20900-3002-57170
20900-3002-57171
20900-3002-57173
21100-0001-47110
21100-3001-54040
29700-2002-56120
30406-2002-55030
30400-2002-58080
39900-2002-55030

Project Account Key

**N’one¥*

Grand Total:

Account Summary

Account Name
Supplies - General Office
Maintenance & Repairs -
Contract - Professional S
Contract - Other Service
Supplies - Kitchen
Rent of Equipment/Mac¢
Litilities - Electricity
LHilities - Natural Gas
Utilities - Water
Supplies - General Office
Employee Training
Maintenance & Repairs -
Contract - Other Service
Supplies - Field Supplies
Supplies - Unifarms/Line
Supplies - Vehicle Fuel
Subscriptions & Dues
Contract - Other Service
Maintenance & Repairs -
Contract - Other Service
Supplies - Vehicle Fuel
Rent of Equipment/Mac
Utilities - Electricity
Supplies - Other
Maintenance & Repairs -
Other Maintenance
Supplies - Field Supplies
Suppiies - Janitorial/Mai
Supglies - Uniforms/Line
Supplies - Vehicle Fuel
Utilities - Electricity
Utilities - Natural Gas
LUkilities - Water
State - Law Enforcement
Maintenance & Repairs -
Supplies - Vehicle Fuel
Contract - Professional §
Roadways/Bridges
Contract - Professional 5
Grand Total:

Project Account Summary

Grand Total:

Expense Amount
77,905.46

184.82

6,797.90

850.17

43.62

38,190.19
1,981.08
125,053.24

Expense Amount
41.42
6,484.20
41,323.31
8,310.35
11.85
138.0%
138041
435.82
453.79
568.94
595.00
4,853.00
188.10
1,953.00
179.95
958.65
2,350.00
1,985.85
2,939.30
243.68
368.83
372.55
236.26
184.82
2,193.05
975.00
803.26
105.48
658.77
1,145.48
735.20
938.28
83.38
652.00
258.17
43.62
10,114.7%
28,075.48
1,981.08
126,053.24

Expense Amount

126,053.24

126,053.24

Packet: APPKT01741 - AP 12.3.25

12/4/2025 2:08:39 PM

Page 3 of 4



Expense Approval Register

MAYOR & COUNCILORS

JOSHUA RAMSELL, MAYOR

LAWRENCE GORDON, COUNCILOR

ARTHUR APQDACA, COUNCILOR

MATTHEW MARQUEZ, COUNCILOR

THOMAS NELSON, COUNCILOR

ATTEST:

MUNICIPAL CLERK

Packet: APPKT01741 - AP 12.3.25

Authorization Signatures

12/4/2025 2:08:39 PM

Page 4 of 4



CITY OF RIO COMMUNITIES

360 Ric Communities Blvd.
Rio Communities, NM 87002
505-861-6803
www.riccormmunities.net

2026 OFFICIAL HOLIDAYS

New Years Day ihursday, January 1st

Martin Luther King Jr. Birthday 1day, January 19t

President’s Day
onday, May 25t

Memorial Day

Juneteenth (Obs ursday, June 18

Monday, july 6%
Monday, September 7t

Indigenous Peoplé Monday, October 12t

Veterans’ Day Wednesday, November 11t
Thanksgiving Day Thursday, November 26t

Christmas (Observed) Thursday, December 24th



CITY OF RIO COMMUNITIES

360 Rio Communities Blvd.
Rio Communities, NM 87002
505-861-5803
www.riocommunities.net

City Council Meeting Dates

[anuary
Monday, January 12t and Monday, January 26t

February
Monday, February 9% and Monday, Februa

March
Monday, March 9th and Monday, March

April
Monday, April 13t and Monday, &

ib
Monday, September 14%and Monday, September 28t

October
Tuesday, October 13t and Monday, October 26t

November
Monday, November 9th

December
Monday, December 14t



11~24~2025

TO
City Council

FROM
Library Board

cC
Dr. Marty Moore
City Manager

RE
Recommendation
for the Library

Memo

Recommendation to City Council Regarding Library”
» Recognize the Library as a Department in the City with
Developing Library Status.

+ Do a Budget Adjustment Resolution that formally brings
the $20,000 library GRO legislative grant into the Library
budget.

 Establish the following positions in the library budget
1. Library Director Position at 40 hours at $21.50 per hour
2. Library Assistant for 9 hours per week at $15.00 per
hour '



S1993UN[OA
pue seaio|dwig
Y EWETIR

{z) ueusinary

ujeyded sa14

$o1y) Aindag " Etﬂ_m
o

JO1IJ1

P Al 122.(q

SI0A 211gnd

JAoWYO S2ueuld

Z) Pasp {sunoy 6
Awwwwc_r 1e 195) Juels|ssy
. Aeaqn :

(sinoy ;
Ot 03 p2101SE)) o
Joyaaq Em‘_n__._..”. ;

(8)

i si200 [ed

uepluLay

SauBpIAg
1eadies

Io3eugy
1UBUaINDIY DO

1990
Juawisdrojug
apod

BAII0933Q

RUETTTER o] 1T |
apo) / Jauuejd §

49142 |0jjod

._>m=‘_oﬁ<” . ”‘_mumcms_a_u
L A _ :

|Ibunojfioken
Apog 3ulwianon

A3
1n07) |edpiuniy

adpnr
ledizungy

SUDZIND SAIUNWILLIOD )
o1y jo Ay i




STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF RIO COMMUNITIES
RESOLUTION 2025 - XX

QUARTERLY BUDGET AMENDMENT BAR #02

QUARTER #2

(FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2026)

WHEREAS,  the GoverningBoard in and for the City of Rio Communities, State of New Mexico has

developed a budget for fiscal year 2026, and

WHEREAS,  said budget was developed upon need and through cooperation with all user departments,
elected officials, and other department supervisors, and

WHEREAS,  the official meetings for the review of said documents were duly advertised in compliance with
the State Open Meetings Act, and

THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the Governing Body of the City of Rio Communities, State of New
Mexico hereby approves the following adjustments attached herein.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 8" DAY OF December 2025 BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE
CITY OF RIO COMMUNITIES, NEW MEXICO.

City of Rio Communities Governing Body

Lawrence R. Gordon,
Mayor Pro-tem/Councilor

Thomas Nelson,
Councilor

ATTEST:

Martin D. Moore, Acting Municipal Clerk

Joshua Ramsell,

Mayor

Arthur Apodaca,
Councilor

Matthew Marguez,
Councilor



BAR 15-252-21510 printed from LGBMS on 2025-12-01 14:51:21

State of New Mexico - DFA Local Government Division
Budget Adjusiment Request - Rio Communities (City) - 2026

Bar #2 Quarter 2 Adjustments

BariD

Email

Contact Phone Status
15-252-21510 : ENTITY
Details
T e —— © Oblectcode PrafusisdBudget | Adustmort | Adusedoudgt
11000 General Cperating Fund ; 0001 Ne Department , 101104 State Requirad Reserve 175,313.07 ; 2,610.36 177,823.43
. 11000 General QOperating Fund : 0001 No Dépattment : 41250 Gross Receipts Tax - 667,000.00 £,000.00 . 675,060.00
; . Municipal Local Opticn General : B
‘ 110080 Genaral Operating Fund 0001 No Department ! 42401 GRT Shared - Municipal 454,333.00 f 6,000.00 4560,333.00
; Equivalent Distribution 1‘
¢ 11000 General Cparating Fung ¢ 0001 Na Deparirment _. 47398 Othar State Distributions 12,000.00 . 20,00000 ¢ 32,00000
i ; : {operatonal) . !
11060 General Operating Fund 1001 Governing Body 51040 Salaries - Part-Tims Positions (.00 J 4,320.00 ‘ 4,320.00
© 11000 Generai Cperafing Fund L 4004 Ltbrary 51020 Salaties - Full-Time Posttions 30,825.00 : 13,500.00 : 44,325.00
110600 General Operating Fund ‘ 4004 Library 52010 FICA - Regular 1.911.18 1.030.00 284119
11000 Genera! Cperating Fund 4004 Library " 62011 FICA - Medicare 446.97 730.00 1,196.97
11000 General Operating Fund 4004 Library E 52020 Retirement 5,574.67 1 1,335.00 6,908.67
: 11000 General Operating Fund 4604-Library : $2030 Health and Madisal 0.00 780836 7.809.36
N , Premiums i
: 11000 General Operating Fund 4004 Library 52120 Workers' Compensation (Seif 5000 2,580.00 2,64000

Justification

: Insured}

Compliance with Section 6-6-2, NMSA, 1978 compilation:

1. The requested budget adjustments were authorized at 2 scheduted Gaovernin
2. Justification should provide a sufficient explanation

requested by Budget and Finance Analysts, should be submitted on LGBMS.

Approvals

g Body meeting open to the public on 2025-12-08
for budget adjustment. Backup documentation such as grant award letier or other documents

Name

Role

. Entity Submitter

“ Anafyst

Bureau Chief




STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF RIO COMMUNITIES
RESOLUTION 2025 — XX

QUARTERLY BUDGET AMENDMENT BAR #3

QUARTER #2

(FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2026)

WHEREAS,  the Governing Board in and for the City of Rio Communities, State of New Mexico has
developed a budget for fiscal year 2026, and

WHEREAS,  said budget was developed upon need and through cooperation with all user departments,

elected officials, and other department supervisors, and

WHEREAS,  the official meetings for the review of said documents were duly advertised in compliance with

the State Open Meetings Act, and

THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the Governing Body of the City of Rio Communities, State of New

Mexico hereby approves the following adjustments attached herein.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 8" DAY OF December 2025 BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE

CITY OF RIO COMMUNITIES, NEW MEXICO.

City of Rio Communities Governing Body

Lawrence R. Gordon,
Mayor Pro-tem/Councilor

Thomas Nelson,
Councilor

ATTEST:

Martin D. Moore, Acting Municipal Clerk

Joshua Ramsell,

Mayor

Arthur Apodaca,
Councilor

Matthew Marquez,
Councilor



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF RIO COMMUNITIES
RESOLUTION 2025 - 36

QUARTERLY BUDGET AMENDMENT BAR #3

QUARTER #2

(FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2026)

WHEREAS,  the Governing Board in and for the City of Rio Communities, State of New Mexico has
developed a budget for fiscal year 2026, and

WHEREAS,  said budget was developed upon need and through cooperation with all user departments,

elected officials, and other department supervisors, and

WHEREAS, the official meetings for the review of said documents were duly advertised in compliance with

the State Open Meetings Act, and

THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the Governing Body of the City of Rio Communities, State of New

Mexico hereby approves the following adjustments attached herein.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 8t DAY OF December 2025 BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE

CITY OF RIO COMMUNITIES, NEW MEXICO.

City of Rio Communities Governing Body

Lawrence R. Gordon,
Mayor Pro-tem/Councilor

Thomas Nelson,
Councilor

ATTEST:

Martin D. Moore, Acting Municipal Clerk

Joshua Ramsell,

Mavyor

Arthur Apodaca,
Councilor

Matthew Marquez,
Councilor



BAR 15-252-21529 printed from LGBMS on 2025-12-04 10:24:07

State of New Mexico - DFA Local Government Division

Budget Adjustment Request - Rio Communities (City) - 2026
BAR #3 Quarter 2 Adjustments

Bar ID

Contact : Phone Email ! Status
| 15.-252-21529 : 3_ ; ENTITY
Details
Fund Department Objact Cade : PreAdiusted Budget Adjustment Adjusted Budget
| 29900 iner Special Revenue } 0001 No Department * 46010 Contributions/Donatons 0.00 100,00000 | 100,000.60
i : i :
| 29900 Other Special Revenue 2002 General Administration : 68010 Bulldings & Structures 0.00 100,000.00 100,000.00
Justification

Compliance with Sectian 6-68-2, NMSA, 1978 compilation:

1. The requasted budget adjustments were authorized at a schadulad Goveming Body meeting cpen to the public on 6000-00-00

2. Justification should provide a sufficient expianation for budget adjustment. Backup documentation such as grant award letter or other documants
requested by Budget and Finance Analysts, should be submitted on LGBMS.

Approvals

Name

Role

. Date !
| Enffty Submitter

Analyst

" Bureau Chief




Comments on 289200-0001-46010 0.00

4 Back {2 ems

R

iw| Created 4~  Crestor ' From | To

Comment © - Reat!

2026-12-04 17:23:56

Martin Moors entity analyst These funds are fo be used towards building, furnishing, and eguipping & new Veteran's Memonial Rark in Rie Communities, No




RESOLUTION 2025-xx

Rig Communities

PARTICIPATION IN CAPITAL OUTLAY PROGRAM ADMINISTERED
BY NEW MEXICO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

WHEREAS, the City of Rio Communities and the New Mexico Department of Transportation enter into a
Cooperative Agreement.

WHEREAS, the total cost of the project will be $200,000.00 to be funded by the parties hereto as follows:

a. New Mexico Department of Transportation’s share shall be 100% or 5200,000.00
and
b. City of Rio Communities proportional matching share shall be 0% or $0.00

TOTAL PROJECT COST IS 5200,000.00

City of Rio Communities shall pay all costs, which exceed the total amount of $200,000.00

Now therefore, be it resolved in official session that City of Rio Communities determines, resolves; and
orders as follows:

That the project for this Cooperative agreement is adopted and has a priority standing.

The agreement terminates on June 30, 2029 {for Laws of 2025) and the City of Rie Communities
incorporates all the agreements, covenants, and understandings between the parties hereto cancerning the
subject matter hereof, and all such covenants, agreements and understandings have been merged into the written
agreement.

NOW therefore, be it resolved by the City of Rio Communities to enter into Cooperative Agreement
Control Number HW2£3253306 with the New Mexico Department of Transportation for Capital Outlay Laws of
2025 to Plan, Design and Equip Street Lights throughout, and within the control of the City of Rio Communities in

Valencia County New Mexico.

City of Rio Communities Governing Body

Joshua Ramsell,

Mavyor

Lawrence R. Gordon, Arthur Apodaca,
Mayor Pro-tem/Councilor Councilor
Thomas Nelson, Matthew Marquez,
Councilor Councilor

ATTEST:

Martin D, Moore, Acting Municipal Clerk



Contract Number:
Vendor Number: 00000110108
Control Number: HW2C3253306

NEW MEXICO CAPITAL GUTLAY GRANT AGREEMENT
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
CAPITAL APPROPRIATION PROJECT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the State of New Mexico, Department of
Transportation, (“Department”) and City of Rio Communities, (“Grantee”) (individually “Party” and collectively
“Parties”). This Agreement shall be effective as of the date the Department executes it (‘Effective Date”).

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, in the Laws of 2025, HB450, Chapter 159, Section 39, Subsection 86, the Legislature made
an appropriation to the Department, funds from which the Department is making available to the Grantee
pursuant to this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Department is granting to Grantee, and the Grantee is accepting the grant of funds from
this appropriation, in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and obligations contained herein, the
parties hereby mutually agree as follows;

AGREEMENT
. PROJECT DESCRIPTION, GRANT AMOUNT, AND REVERSION

A. C3253306 ("Project”), Appropriation 1D J3306, Reversion Date 6/30/2029 ("Reversion Date”). Laws of
2025, Chapter 159, Section 39, Subsection 86, (Two Hundred Thousand Dollars and No Cents)
($200,000), to plan, design, construct and equip street lights in Rio Communities in Valencia
county.

B. Grantee's total reimbursements shall not exceed Two Hundred Thousand Dollars and No Cents,
($200,000) (“Appropriation Amount”) minus the aliocation for Art in Public Places (“AIPP amount”), if
applicable, Zero Dollars and No Cents, which equals Two Hundred Thousand Dollars and No Cents
(“Adjusted Appropriation Amount”).

C. Inthe event of a conflict among the Appropriation Amount, the Reversion Date, as defined herein and/or
the purpose of the Project, as set forth in this Agreement, and the corresponding appropriation language
in the [aws cited above in this Article I, the language of the laws cited herein shall control.

The information contained in Article I is referred to collectively as the *Project Description.”

ll. DISBURSEMENT LIMITATION

A. Upon the Effective Date, the Grantee shall submit fo the Department a comprehensive procurement plan
and expenditure plan, detaiiing a Project timeline with milestones, required procurements, and identifying

Page 1 of 23



expected expenditures per milestone (collectively, “Project Budget”). The Department shall review and
approve the Project Budget by approving a Notice of Department’'s Obligation (“Notice of Obligation”),
in accordance with the Project Description, a sample of which is aftached hereto as Exhibit B and
incorporated herein by reference. After receipt of approved Notice of Obligation, the Grantee may be
reimbursed for allowable costs up to the Adjusted Appropriation Amount. This Agreement and any
reimbursements up to the Adjusted Appropriation Amount are expressly conditioned upon the following:

a. Irrespective of any Notice of Obligation, Grantee’s expenditures shall be made in accordance with
the Project Budget, on or before the Reversion Date and/or, if applicable, any Early Termination
Date; and :

b. The fotal amount received by Grantee shall not exceed the lesser of:

i. the Adjusted Appropriation Amount identified in Article [ (B) herein; or
ii. the total of all amounts stated in the Notice(s) of Obligation evidencing the Department
has received and accepted Grantee’s Third Party Obligation(s); and

c. Grantee’s expenditures are made and accounted for pursuant fo the State Procurement Code,
State’s Model Accounting Practices, and execution of binding written obligations or purchase
orders with third-party contractors or vendors for the provision of services, including professional
services, or the purchase of tangible personal property and real property for the Project (“Third
Party Obligations™); and

d. Grantee’s submittal of timely Requests for Payment and supporting documentation in accordance
with the procedures set forth in this Agreement; and.

e. In the event capital assets acquired with Project funds are to be sold, leased, or licensed to or
operated by a private entity, the sale, lease, license, or operating agreement:

i. must be approved by the applicable oversight entity (if any) in accordance with §§ 13-6-2,
13-6-2.1, and 13-6-3; or

ii. If no oversight entity is required to approve the transaction, the Department of Finance
and Administration’s Infrastructure Planning Development Division (IPDD) must approve
it as complying with the law.

Prior to the sale, lease, license, or operating agreement being approved pursuant to Articles II{A)e) (i)
or {ii) herein, the Department may, in its sole and absolute discretion, unless inconsistent with State
Board of Finance imposed conditions, reimburse Grantee for necessary expenditures incurred to develop
the Project sufficiently to make the sale, lease, license, or operating agreement commercially feasible,
limited to planning and design expenditures; and

Grantee’s submission of documentation of all Third Party Ohligations and amendments thereto (including
terminations) to the Department and the Department’s issuance of a Notice of Obligation for a particular
amount in accordance with the terms of this Agreement shall be governed by the following:

a. Grantee is authorized to budget the particular amount set forth in the Notice of Obligation, execute
the Third Party Obligation, and request the Third Party to begin work after issuance of a Notice of
Obligation by the Department.

b. Grantee acknowledges and agrees that any Third Party Ohligations agreed to prior to receiving a
Notice of Obligation are ifs sole responsibility.

c. Grantee shall submit to the Department one copy of all Third Party Obligations and amendments
thereto (including terminations) as soon as possible after execution by the Third Party but prior to
execution by the Grantee.

d. Department may, in its sole and absolute discretion, issue a Notice of Obligation for the particular
amount of a Third Party Obligation that only obligates the Department to reimburse Grantee’s
expenditures made on or before the Reversion Date or an Early Termination Date. The current
Notice of QObligation form is incorporated herein and atfached hereto as Exhikit B.

Page 2 of 23



D. Grantee shall provide all necessary qualified personnel, mateérials, and facilities to implement the Project.
The Grantee shall finance its share (if any) of the costs of the Project, including all Project overruns.

E. Prior to entering into this Agreement, the Department conducted a risk assessment on the Grantee and
a project readiness review for the Project. In accordance with State Model Accounting Practices, FIN 9.2,
if the Department determines that the expenditure of Project funds by the Grantee requires special
conditions, those conditions are identified and listed in Exhibit C, which is attached and incorporated by
reference. The Parties agree that, to the extent the Department, in its sole and absolute discretion,
determines additional special conditions are necessary or that existing special conditions are no longer
required, it may update Exhibit C from time to time without the need for a formal amendment of ihis
Agreement.

F. Project funds shall not be used for purposes other than those authorized by the Department in
accordance with the Project Description.

G. Project funds cannot be used to reimburse the Grantee for indirect Project costs unless specifically
allowed by law.

lll. NOTICES

The following provisions shall apply whenever written notices, including written decisions, are to be given or
received related to this Agreement.

A. The Grantee designates the person(s) listed below, or their successor, as their official representative(s)
concerning all matters related to this Agreement:

Grantee: City of Rio Communities

Name: Amy Lopez

Title: City Manager Assistant

Address: 360 Rio Communities Blvd, Rio Communities, New Mexico 87002
Email: alopez@riocommunities.net

Telephone:  505-861-6803

B. The Grantee designates the person(s) listed below, or their successor, as their Fiscal Officer or Fiscal
Agent concerning all matters related to this Agreement:

Grantee:
Name:
Title:
Address:
Email:
Telephone:

C. The Department designates the persons listed below, or their successors, as the Points of Contact for
matters related to this Agreement.

Department: Department of Transportation, District 3 Oifice
Name: Tim Chavez

Title: Capital Quilay District Cocrdinator

Address: P.0O. Box 91750, Albugquerque, NM 87199-1750

Page 3 of 23



Email: Tim.Chavez@dot.nm.gov
Telephone:  505-490-3502

The Parties agree that all notices, including written decisions, related to this Agreement shall be sent to the
persons named above by email or regular mail. For mailings, notices shall be deemed to have been given and
received upon the date of the receiving party’s actual receipt or five (5) calendar days after mailing, whichever
shall first occur. In the case of email transmissions, the notice shall be deemed to have been given and received
on the date reflected on the delivery receipt of the email.

v.

A

B.

TERM & DEADLINE TO EXPEND FUNDS

The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and terminate on the 30 day of June during
the calendar year of the Reversion Date unless Terminated Before Reversion Date (“Early
Termination”) pursuant to Article V herein (collectively “Term”).

The Project’s funds must be expended on or before the Reversion Date and, if applicable, the Early
Termination Date of this Agreement.

a. For purposes of this Agreement, it is not sufficient for the Grantee to encumber the Project funds
on its books on or before the Reversion Date or Early Termination Date.

b. For purposes of this Agreement, an expenditure of funds has occurred on the date the particular
guantity of goods is delivered to and received by the Grantee, title to the goods is transferred to
the Grantee, and/or as of the date particular services are rendered to and accepted by the
Grantee,

¢. For purposes of this Agreement, an encumbrance of funds pursuant to a contract or purchase
order with a third party does not qualify as an expenditure.

EARLY TERMINATION

General Provision. The Department may terminate this Agreement before the Reversion Date based on
the Completion of the Project, Complete Expenditure of the Adjusted Appropriation, and/or Violation of
this Agreement. Early Termination hereunder includes:

a. Termination due to completion of the Project before the Reversion Date;

b. Termination due to complete expenditure of the Adjusted Appropriation Amount before the
Reversion Date;

¢. Termination for violation of the terms of this Agreement; or

d. Termination for suspected mishandling of public funds, including but not limited to fraud, waste,
abuse, and conflicts of interest.

Non-appropriation. This Agreement is expressly contingent upon the New Mexico State Legislature
making sufficient appropriations and authorizations for the Project Description.

a. lithe Legislature does not appropriate the Appropriation Amount, this Agreement shall terminate
upon the Department giving the Grantee written notice of such termination. Such termination shall
be effective as of the effective date of the law making the non-appropriation.

i. The Depariment’s decision as to whether sufficient appropriations or authorizations are
available shall be final. Grantee hereby waives any rights to assert an impairment of
contract claim against the State of New Mexico in the event of Early Termination of this
Agreement.

b. As used herein, “non-appropriate” or “non-appropriation” includes the following actions by the
New Mexico Legislature:

Page 4 0of 23



i. Deauthorization, reauthorization, or revocation of a prior authorization.

C. Grant Disbursements in the Event of Early Termination. In the event of Early Termination, the
Department’s sole and absolute obligation to reimburse the Grantee is expressly conditioned upon the
limitations set forth in Article || above.

D. Notice. Either Party may terminate this Agreement prior to the Reversion Date by providing the other
Party with a minimum of fifteen (1 5) days advance written notice of the Early Termination. Grantee hereby
waives any rights to assert an impairment of contract claim against the State of New Mexico in the event
of Early Termination of this Agreement by the Department.

VL.  SUSPENSION OF NEW OR FURTHER OBLIGATIONS

A. Department, in its sole and absolute discretion, may provide written notice to Grantee to suspend
entering into further obligations. Upon the receipt of such written notice by the Grantee:

a. Grantee shall immediately suspend entering into new or further written obligations with third
parties;

b. Department will suspend the issuance of any new or further Notice of Obligation under this
Agreement; and

c. Department may direct the Grantee to implement a corrective action plan in accordance with
Article V1 (D) herein.

B. Inthe event of Suspension of this Agreement, the Department’s sole and absolute obligation to reimburse
the Grantee is expressly conditioned upon the limitations set forth in Article Il herein.

C. A suspension of new or further obligations under this Agreement shall remain in effect unless or untii the
date the Grantee receives written notice given by the Department informing the Grantee that the
Suspension has been lifted or that the Agreement has been Early Terminated in accordance with Article
V herein. If the Suspension is lifted, the Department will consider further requests for a Notice of
Obligation.

D. Corrective Action Plan in the Event of Suspension. Where the Department, in its sole and absolute
discretion, directs Grantee to suspend entering into new or further written obligations with third parties
pursuant to Article Vi(A), the Department may, but is not obligated to, require the Grantee to develop and
implement a written corrective action plan to remedy the grounds for the Suspension.

a. Such a corrective action plan must be approved by the Department and be signed by the Grantee.

b. Failure to sign a corrective action pian or meet the terms and deadlines set forth in the signed
corrective action plan is hereby deemed a violation of the terms of this Agreement for purposes
of Early Termination, Article V(A)c).

€. A corrective action plan shall be in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other equitable or legal
remedy authorized hereunder or at law, including but not limited to Early Termination.

VI.  AMENDMENTS

Unless expressly stated otherwise herein, this Agreement shall not be altered, changed, or amended except by
an instrument in writing duly executed by both parties hereto with the same formalities as this agreement.

Page 5 of 23



VIIl. REPORTING
A. Database Reporting

a. Grantee shall provide the Department with quarterly reports of Project activity, entering the
required Project information directly into a database required by the Department.

b. Additionally, Grantee shall certify on each Request for Payment form, attached hereto as Exhibit
A and incorporated herein, that all information provided in the database is true and accurate,
updates to the database have been maintained, and all Project activity complies with applicable
law and the terms of this Agreement.

c. Grantee hereby acknowledges that failure to perform and/or certify updates to the database will
jeopardize the reimbursement of funds. The Department shall give Grantee a minimum of fourteen
(14) days’ advance written notice of any changes to the mformatlon the Grantee is required o
report.

d. Atthe Department’s discretion, all reports required hereunder may be directed to and facilitated
through an electronic database.

e. Quarterly reports shall be due on the last day of the month, that is, 30 days prior to the end of the
quarter following the execution of this Agreement by the Department and ending during the
quarter of the submission of the final request for reimbursement for the Project, or the following
quarter.

B. Requests for Additional Information/Project Inspection
During the term of this Agreement and during the period of time during which the Grantee must
maintain records pursuant to Article VIII, the Department may:

i. request such additional information regarding the Project as it deems necessary; and
ii. conduct, at reascnable times and upon reasonable notice, onsite inspections of the Project.

Grantee shall respond to such requests for additional information within a reasonable period of time, as
established by the Department.

B. Reqguests for Additional Information/Project Inspection

a. During the term of this Agreement and the Record Retention Period, the Department may:
i, Request additional information regarding the Project as it deems necessary and
ii. Conduct on-site inspections of the Project at reasonable times and upon reasonable

notice.
b. Grantee shall respond to such requesis for additional information within the {ime established by
the Department.

IX. REQUEST FOR PAYMENT PROCEDURES

A. Grantee shall request payment by submitting the form attached hereto as Exhibit A. Payment requests
are subject to the following procedures:

a. Each Request for Payment must be in accordance with the Project Budget and contain proof of
payment by the Grantee or liabilities incurred by the Grantee.
i. Proof of payment must demonstrate the validity of an expenditure or liabilities incurred by

Grantee.
ii. However, Grantee may be reimbursed for unpaid liabilities only if the Department, in its
sole and absolute discretion, agrees to do so and in accordance with any special

conditions imposed by the Depariment.

Page 6 0T 23



fii. The Grantee shall make payment to those contractors or vendors within five (5) business
days from the date of receiving reimbursement from the Department or in a shorter period
than the Department may prescribe in writing.

iv. The Department reserves the right to make such payments directly to the contraciors or
vendors as a special condition under this Agreement.

v. The Grantee is required to certify to the Department proof of payment to the third-party
contractor or vendor within five (5) business days from the date the Department
reimburses the Grantee.

. Until the Project is fully planned, designed, and all necessary procurements identified in the Project
Budget are completed, Grantee's reimbursements will be limited to the planning, design, and
procurement costs outlined in the Project Budget. Once the planning, designing, and procuring stages
are complete, the Grantee must obligate at least ten percent (10%) of the Adjusted Appropriation Amount
within one (1) year and must have utilized at least eighty-five percent (85%) of the Adjusted Appropriation
Amount six (6) months before the reversion date.

. Deadlines. Grantee shall submit requests for Payments to the Department on the earlier of:

a. Immediately as Grantee receives them, but at a maximum of thirty (30) days from when Grantee
incurred the expenditure or liability; or

b. Twenty (20) days from the date of Early Termination or Reversion Date for expenditures or
liabilities incurred before the Early Termination date or Reversion Date.

. Grantee’s failure to abide by the requirements set forth in Article Il and Article [X herein may result in the
denial of its Request for Payment. Department reserves the right 1o reject a payment request for the
Project unless and until it is satisfied that the expenditures or liabilities are for permissible purposes within
the meaning of the Project Description, identified within the Project Budget, and that the Grantee is
otherwise in compliance with this Agreement.

a. Department’s authority to reject any Request for Payment is in addition to, and not in lieu of, any
other legal or equitable remedy available to the Department under this Agreement, at [aw, or in

equity.

PROJECT CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS

. The following general conditions and restrictions shall apply to the Project:

a. The Project's funds must be spent in accordance with all applicable state laws, regulations,
policies, and guidelines, including, but not limited to, the State Procurement Code.

b. The Project’s expenditures and [iabilities must be accounted for in accordance with the State’s
Model Accounting Practices, as amended from time fo time.

c. The Project must be implemented in accordance with the New Mexico Public Works Minimum
Wage Act, Section 13-4-10 through 13-4-17 NMSA 1878, as applicable.

d. The Project must provide a public benefit above and beyond any incidental benefit to private
entities in accordance with applicable law, including, but not limited to, Article IX, Section 14 of
the Constitution of the State of New Mexico.

e. Without prior written approval from the Department and State Board of Finance, for the useful life
of any asset purchased under this Agreement, Grantee shall not convert any property acquired,
built, renovated, repaired, designed, or developed with Project funds to uses other than those
specified in the Project Description.

Page 7 of 23



i. In addition to other remedies available at law or in equity, any disposal or conversion of
property acquired, built, renovated, repaired, designed, or developed with Project funds
without the Department's and the Board of Finance’s express written approval will trigger
the Department’s right to reimbursement from Grantee of the Appropriated Amount,
transfer proceeds from any disposition of property to the State, or otherwise provide
consideration to the State for the Appropriated Amounts,

f. Grantee shall comply with all applicable federal and state laws, rules, and regulations pertaining
to civil rights and equal employment opportunity.

i. Inaccordance with all such laws, rules, and regulations, the Grantee agrees to assure that
no person shall, on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, sexual preference, age,
or handicap, be excluded from participation in the Project, use of the Project, employment
with Grantee, or otherwise be denied benefits/subject to discrimination for any activity
performed under this Agreement.

g. Where the Department, in its sole and absolute discretion, determines Grantee has failed to
comply with the above conditions and restriction, Grantee agrees to take appropriate steps to
correct any deficiencies immediately. The Grantee’s failure to implement such appropriate steps
within a reasonable time, but no longer than thirty (30) days after notice from the Department,
constitutes a breach of this Agreement and grounds for Early Termination.

Xl. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

A. Reliance by Department.

a. Grantee expressly acknowledges that the Department relies on the representations and
warranties made by Grantee in this Agreement. Grantee acknowledges that such representations
and warranties are a material inducement for the Department to enter into this Agreement and
provide the Appropriated Amount.

b. Grantee shall ensure all representations and warranties provided herein are true, accurate, and
compiete as of the date of the Effective Date and shall remain so throughout the Term of this
Agreement. Grantee is responsible for promptly notifying the Department in writing of any
changes or inaccuracies in the representations and warranties contained herein.

B. Grantee hereby represents and warrants the following:

a. Grantee has taken all necessary steps to attain the legal authority to receive and expend the
Project’s funds.

b. Grantee has duly authorized this Agreement, and the person executing it has authority to do so.
Once exacuted by Grantee, this Agreement shal| constitute a binding obligation of Grantee,
enforceable according to its terms.

c. Grantee's obligations hereunder do not conflict with any law, ordinance, or resolution applicable
to Grantee, Grantee’s charter (if applicable), or any judgment or decree to which Grantee is
subject.

d. Grantee has independently confirmed that the Project Description, including, but not limited to,
the Appropriated Amount and Reversion Date, is consistent with the underlying appropriation in
law,

e. Grantee’s governing body has duly adopted or passed as an official act a resolution, motion, or
similar action authorizing the person identified as the official representative of the Grantee to sign
and submit Requests for Payment on behalf of Grantee.

f.  Grantee will abide by New Mexico laws regarding conflicts of interest, governmental conduct, and
whistleblower protection.

.. Grantee agrees explicitly none of its officers or employees or its designees or agents, no
member of the governing body, and no other public official of Grantee who exercises any

Page 8 0 23



function or responsibility with respect to this Agreement, shall have any interest, direct or
indirect, in any contract or subcontract, or the proceeds thereof, for the Project.

ii. Further, Grantee will require all of its contractors to incorporate the language set forth in
this paragraph prohibiting conflicts of interest in all subcontracts.

g. No funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the Grantee, to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of the State, any agency, or body in
connection with the awarding of any Third Party Obligation.

i. Grantee will require certifying language prohibiting lobbying to be included in the award
documents for all subawards, including subcontracts, loans, and cooperative agreements.

C. Consequences of False or Misleading Representations. If any representation or warranty made by
Grantee is found to be false or misleading, the Department shalt have the right to exercise any or all of
the following remedies:

a. Termination of Agreement: Department may terminate this Agreement immediately upon
written notice to the Grantee.

b. Repayment of Grant Funds: Grantee shall repay all Appropriated Amounts disbursed under this
Agreement, upon demand by the Department.

¢. Other Remedies: Department may pursue any other remedies available at law or in equity.

D. Survival of Representations and Warranties. The representations and warranties made by the Grantee
shall survive the Early Termination or expiration of this Agreement.

Xill. PROJECT RECORDS

A. Grantee shall be strictly accountable for receipts and disbursements relating to the Project’s funds. The
Grantee shall foliow generally accepted accounting principles and the State’s Model Accounting Practices
and, if feasible, maintain a separate bank account or fund with a separate organizational code to ensure
separate budgeting and accounting of the funds.

B. For six (6) years following the Project’'s compietion ("Record Retention Period”), Grantee shall maintain
all Project-related records, including, but not limited to, all financial records, requests for proposals,
invitations to bid, selection and award criteria, contracts and subcontracts, advertisements, minutes of
pertinent meetings, as well as records sufficient to fully account for the amount and disposition of the
Appropriated Amount from all sources budgeted for the Project, the purpose for which such funds were
used, and such other records as the Department may prescribe.

C. Grantee shall make all Project records available to the Department, the Department's Independent Public
Accountant, and the New Mexico State Auditor upon request. With respect to the funds that are the
subject of this Agreement, if the State Auditor or the Departiment finds any funds were improperly
expended, Grantee shall be required fo reimburse the State all amounis found to be improperly
expended.

Xlil. IMPROPERLY REIMBURSED FUNDS

If the Department determines part or all of the Appropriation Amount was improperly reimbursed to Grantee,
including but not limited o funds reimbursed to Grantee based upon fraud, mismanagement, misrepresentation,
misuse, violation of law by the Grantee, after ten (10) days’ notice to Grantee and the opportunity o return such
funds to the Department, the Department may offset any funds due to Grantee from the State, until the
Appropriation Amount is fully repaid.

Page 9 of 23



Xlv,

LIABILITY

Neither Party shall be responsible for liability incurred as a result of the other Party’s acts or omissions in
connection with this Agreement. Any liability incurred in connection with this Agreement is subject to immunities
and limitations of the New Mexico Tort Claims Act.

XV.

SCOPE OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement constitutes the entire and exclusive agreement between the Parties concerning the subject
matter hereof. The Agreement supersedes all prior or contemporaneous agreements, understandings,
discussions, communications, and representations, written or verbal.

XVI.

XVIL.

XVHI.

A.

A

REQUIRED NON-APPROPRIATIONS CLAUSE

Grantee acknowledges and agrees to include a “non-appropriations” clause in all contracts between it
and other parties that are (i) funded in whole or part by funds made available under this Agreement and
(i) entered into after the effactive date of this Agreement that states:

a. “The terms of this Agreement are contingent upon sufficient appropriations and authorization
being made by the Legislature of the State of New Mexico (“Legislature”) for the performance of
this Agreement.

b. If the Legislature does not make sufficient appropriations and authorization, [Grantee’s name]
may immediately terminate this Agreement by giving Contractor written notice of such termination.

c. [Grantee's name]'s decision as to whether sufficient appropriations are available shall be final and
accepted by the Contractor. Contractor hereby waives any rights to assert an impairment of
contract claim against the [Grantee’s name] or the State of New Mexico in the event of immediate
or Early Termination of this Agreement by the [Grantee’s name] or the State Department of
Finance and Administration.”

REQUIRED TERMINATION CLAUSE

Grantee acknowledges and agrees to include the following termination clause in all contracts that are (7)
funded in whole or part by funds made available under this Agreement and (ii) entered into after the
effective date of this Agreement:

a. "This contract is funded in whole or in part by funds made available by the State of New Mexico
(“State”). Should the State terminate its Agreement with [Grantee’s name], [Grantee’s name] may
terminate this contract immediately by providing Contractor written notice of such termination.

b. Inthe event of termination pursuant to this paragraph, [Grantee's name] only liability to Contractor
shali be for goods and services delivered and accepted prior to the termination date.”

COMPLIANCE WITH UNIFORM FUNDING CRITERIA

Throughout the term of this Agreement, Grantee shall;

a. Submit all reports of annual audits and agreed-upon procedures required by § 12-6-3(A)-(B),
NMSA 1978 by the due dates established in § 2.2.2 NMAC, reports of which must be a public
record pursuant to § 12-6-5(A), NMSA 1978 within forty-five (45) days of delivery to the State
Auditor;

Page 10 of 23



b. Have a duly adopted budget for the current fiscal year approved by its budgetary oversight agency
(if any);

c. Timely submit all required financiaj reports to its budgetary oversight agency (if any); and

d. Use accounting methods and procedures consistent with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles and the State’s Model Accounting Principals to expend the Appropriated Amount in
accordance with applicable law and acecount for and safeguard Project funds and assets acquired
with Project funds. :

B. In the event Grantee fails to comply with the requirements of subparagraph A of this Article XVill,
Department may take one or more of the following actions:

a. Suspend new or further obligations pursuant to Article VI(A) of this Agreement:

b. Require the Grantee to develop and implement a written corrective action plan pursuant to Articie
VI(D) of this Agreement to remedy the non-compliance;

¢. Impose special conditions to address the non-compliance by giving Grantee notice of such
special conditions in accordance with Articie Ilf of this Agreement;

i. The Parties agree that any special conditions imposed to address non-compliance shail
be incorporated into this Agreement, through Exhibit C, upon notice to Grantee, without
need for formal amendment of this Agreement;

ii. Special conditions shall be binding and effective on the date that notice is deemed to have
been given pursuant to Article 11l or

d. Terminate this Agreement pursuant to Article V(A) of this Agreement.

XiX. SEVERANCE TAX AND GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

A. Grantee acknowledges and agrees that the underlying appropriation for the Project may originate from
the issuance of tax-exempt severance tax bonds or general obligation bonds by the State. Proceeds from
such bonds are administered by the New Mexico State Board of Finance (“SBOF”), an entity separate
and distinct from the Department.

a. Grantee acknowledges and agrees:
i. It is Grantee's responsibility to determine through SBOF what (it any) conditions are

currently imposed on the Project;

ii. Department's failure to inform Grantee of an SBOF-imposed condition does not affect the
validity or enforceability of the condition;

iil. The SBOF may in the future impose further or different conditions upon the Project:

iv. All SBOF conditions are aftached to the Project and Appropriation Amount without the
need for forrmal amendment of this Agresment;

v. All applicable SBOF conditions must be satisfied before the SBOF will release to the
Department funds subject to the condition(s) and

vi. The Department’s obligation to reimburse Grantee from the Project is expressly contingent
upon the satisfaction of the then-current SBOF conditions.

B. Grantee acknowledges and agrees SBOF may, at its sole and absolute discretion, require reimbursement
or remove eligibility for bond proceeds for the Project if the Project doesn’t proceed sufficiently.

a. Grantee must comply with the requirement to encumber five percent (5%) of Project funds within

six months of bond issuance as certified by Grantee in the Bond Questionnaire and Certification
documents submitted to the SBOF.

Page 11 of 23



b. Failure to comply may result in the reassignment of the bond proceeds. Upon reassignment of
bond proceeds, this Agreement wilt be suspended until the entity has demonsirated readiness as
determined by the SBOF and the Department. '

. Grantee acknowledges and agrees that this Agreement is subject to the SBOF's Bond Project
Disbursements rule, § 2.61.6, NMAC, as may be amended from fime to time or re-codified.

GENERAL PROVISIONS

. Assignment: Grantee’s rights and obligations under this Agreement are personal and may not be
transferred or assigned without the prior written consent of the State. Any attempt at assignment or
transfer without such consent shall be void. Any assignment or transfer of Grantee’s rights and obligations
approved by the State shall be subject to the provisions of this Agresment,

. Subcontractors: Grantee shall not enter any subgrant or subcontract in connection with its obligations
under this Agreement without the prior written approval of the State. Upon request, Grantee shall submit
to the Department a copy of each such subgrant or subcontract.

- Binding Effect: Except as otherwise provided, all provisions of this Agreement, including the benefits and
burdens, shall extend to and be binding upon the Parties’ respective successors and assigns.

. Authority: Each Party represents and warrants to the other that the execution and delivery of this
Agreement and the performance of such Party’s obligations have been duly authorized.

. Captions and References: The captions and headings in this Agreement are for the convenience of
reference only and shall not be used to interpret, define, or limit its provisions. All references in this
Agreement to sections (whether spelled out or using the § symbol), subsections, exhibits, or other
attachments are references to sections, subsections, exhibits, or other attachments contained herein or
incorporated as a part hereof, unless otherwise noted.

. Counterparts: This Agreement may be executed in multiple, identical, original counterparts, each of which
shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which, taken together, shall constitute the same agreement.

. Digital Signatures: If any signatory signs this agreement using a digital signature in accordance with the
State Policies regarding the use of digital signatures, then any agreement or consent to use digital
signatures within the electronic system through which that signatory signed shall be incorporated into this
Agreement by reference.

. Modification: Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any modification to this Agreement shall
only be effective if agreed to in a formal amendment, properly executed and approved in accordance with
applicable New Mexico law and State fiscal policies and rules. Modifications permitted under this
Agreement, other than Agreement amendments, shall conform to the policies issued by the State.

Statutes, Regulations, Fiscal Rules, and Other Authority: Any reference in this Agreement fo a statute,
regulation, policy, or other authority shall be interpreted to refer to such authority then current, as may
have been changed or amended after the Effective Date of this Agreement.

External Terms and Conditions: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the State shall not be
subject to any provision included in any terms, conditions, or agreements appearing on Grantee’s or a
subconiractor's website or any provision incorporated into any click-through or online agreements related
to the Work unless that provision is specifically referenced in this Agreement.

. Severability: The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement shall not affect the
validity or enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement, which shall remain in full force and

Page 12 of 23



effect, provided that the Parties can continue to perform their obligations under this Agreement in
accordance with its infent.

Survival of Certain Agreement Terms: Any provision of this Agreement that imposes an obligation on a
Party after the termination or expiration of this Agreement shall survive the termination or expiration of
this Agreement and shall be enforceable by the other Party.

. Third Party Beneficiaries: Except for the Parties’ respective successors and assigns described in this
Agreement, it does not and is not intended to confer any rights or remedies upon any person or entity
other than the Parties. Enforcement of this Agreement and all rights and obligations hereunder are
reserved solely to the Pariies. Any services or benefits that third parties receive as a result of this
Agreement are incidental to this Agreement and do not create any rights for such third parties.

. Waiver: A Party’s failure or delay in exercising any right, power, or privilege under this Agreement,
whether explicit or by lack of enforcement, shall not operate as a waiver, nor shall any single or partial
exercise of any right, power, or privilege preclude any other or further exercise of such right, power, or
privilege.

. Standard and Manner of Performance: Grantee shall perform its obligations under this Agreement in
accordance with the highest standards of care, skill, and diligence in Grantee’s industry, trade, or
profession.

. Licenses, Permits, and Other Authorizations: Grantee shall secure, prior to the Effective Date, and
maintain at all times during the term of this Agreement, at its sole expense, all licenses, certifications,
permits, and other authorizations required to perform its obligations under this Agreement and shall
ensure that all employees, agents, and subcontractors secure and maintain at all fimes during the term
of their employment, agency or subcontractor, all license, certifications, permits and other authorizations
required to perform their obligations in relation to this Agreement.

. Pubilicity: Any Publicity regarding the subject matter of this Agreement may not be released without prior
written approval from the Department. For purposes of this agreement, “Publicity” means notices,
informational pamphlets, press releases, email responses, research, reports, signs, and similar public
notices prepared by or for the Grantee or jointly with others,

a. Grantee shall cbtain writien approval prior {o issuing any press release or making any public
announcement regarding this agreement. Grantee agrees to obtain approval of the Department
in advance with respect to all Public Relations, all communications with media, or all
communications with any other member of the public with respect to this agreement, except to
acknowledge that an agreement does exist.

b. Forpurposes of this agreement, “Public Relations” includes community relations and means those
activiies dedicated to maintaining the Department's image or maintaining or promoting
understanding and favorable relations with the community or public at large or any segment of
the public.

c. Violations of either Article XX {Q){a) or (b) shall constitufe a material Breach of Agreement.

. Data Sharing: The State intends to secure and collate specific data generated by Grantee under this
Agreement to use in support of the State’s organizational, poiicy-making, and management of public
resource functions. State, in accordance with Exhibit E, attached hereto and incorpeorated herein by
reference, reserves the right to require Grantee and/or its subcontractors to provide specific data relevant
to the above-listed functions. Data provided by Grantee may be incorporated into existing or future

Page 13 of 23



developed State integrated analysis tools or databases, including but not limited to geographic
information system (GIS) networks and databases accessible by the public. Dissemination of data
coliected may include historical data and projections based on such historical data.

a. To the extent any data transferred as part of this Agreement is legally determined to be the
property of Subrecipient or its subcontractors, Subrecipient and/or its subcontractors grants State
a nonexclusive, fully paid-up right and license to reproduce, use, distribute, do derivative works
based on, and archive data transferred as part of this Agreement.

- Venue and Choice of Law: This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Mexico, without regard to any conflict of law provisions. Any legal suit, action,
or praceeding arising out of or related to this Agreement shall be instituted exclusively in the district courts
located in Santa Fe, New Mexico. The Parties hereby irrevocably submit to the exclusive jurisdiction and
venue of such courts in any such suit, action, or proceeding. The Parties waive any objection to the laying
of the venue of any such suit, action, or proceeding in the district courts of Santa Fe, New Mexico, and
irrevocably waive and agree not to plead or claim in any such court that any such suit, action, or
proceeding brought in any such court has been brought in an inconvenient forum.

[SIGNATURE PAGE AND EXHIBITS FOLLOW]
[THIS SPACE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]

Page 14 of 23



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed this Agreement as of the Depariment's date of
exacution. '

APPROVED BY DEPARTMENT:
NMDOT Cabinet Secretary or Designee:

Signature Date

(Print Name) (Title)

AS TO LEGAL FORM AND SUFFICIENCY
General Counsel’'s Office:

Signature

(Print Name) (Title)

APPROVED BY GRANTEE: _City of Rioc Communities
Entity Name

Official with Authority to Bind Grantee:

Signature

(Print Name) (Title)

Date

Fiscal Officer or Chief Financial QOfficer:

Signature

(Print Name) | (Title)

Date

Page 15 of 23



Legal Counsel: (OPTIONAL)

Signature

{(Print Name) (Title)

Date

Page 16 of 23



EXHIBIT A
Request for Payment Form and Certification

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
GRANT APPROPRIATION
Request for Payment Form
Exhibit A
e ye—
l. Grantee Information gust maich your GFA Substite Weo Form) Il. Payment Computation
A Payment Request No.
A Grantee: B. Grant Amount 5000
B. Address: _ ___ €. AIPP Amount (if Applicable) $0.00
Cumpletz Maling, Moiuging Suite, 1 apmitasie) B. Funds Requested 0 Date: $0.00
T E. Amount Requested this Payment:
F. Reversion Amount (ifapplicabie).  $6.00
C. Contact Name/Phone # G. Grant Balance; $0.00
D. Grant Ne; . [] Final Request for Payment (i applicable)
E. Project Titie:
F. Grant Expiration Date:

il Fiscal Year : RS0 N0 sine 50 2006
(The Sfate of M Fiscal Year is July 1, 20X through June 30, 20XX of the fallowing year)

. Certifications

D I ereby certify that all conditions and reguirements for Payments outlined in the Agreement have been met, including but not limited to:
a. Submission and approval of a Progject Budget as per Arlicle IV, Secticn A of the Agreement.
b. Compliance with the Project Budget and expenditure of funds in accordance with the State Procurement Code and the State's
Medel Aceounting Practices.
c. Submission of suppeiting documentetion as required by the Agreement.
d. Maintenance of afl necessary records and decumentation as stipulsted in the Agreement.

| attest thvat the information provided is correct; expenditures are properly documented and valid or ackial receipts, and that the activity
fully complies with Aticle X, Ssc. 14 of the New Mexico Censtitution, knewn as the “anti-donation” clause.

D { hereby certify that all representations and warranties made in the Agreement remain true, accurate, and cornplets as of the date of
this request, and will continue to be so throughout the temm of the Agresment. | acknowledge that these representations and waranties
are a material inducement for the Department to approve this pay request.

Grantes Fiscal Officer or Fiacal Agent {if applicable) Grantee Representative
Printed Name Printed Name
Date: Date:
(State Agency Use Only)
Vendor Code: Fund No.: PO Loc Ko.:

I certify that the State Agency financial and vendor file infermation agree with the above submitted information.

ASD Officer Date Division Grant Manager Date

Page 17 of 23



EXHIBIT B

Notice of Obligation to Reimburse Grantee #

DATE:

TO: Department Representative:
FROM: Grantee:
Grantee Official Representative:

SUBJECT: Notice of Obligation to Reimburse Grantee
Grant Number:
Grant Terminaton Date:

As the designated representative of the Department for Grant Agreement pumber
entered into between Grantee and the Depattment, 1 certify that the Grantee has submitted to the Department the

following third party obligation executed, in writing, by the third party’s authorized representative:

Vendor or Contractor:
Third Party Obligation Amount:

Vendor or Contractor:
Third Party Obligation Amount:

Vendor or Contractor:
Third Party Obligation Amount:

I certify that the State is issuing this Notice of Obligation to Reimburse Grantee for permissible purposes within
the scope of the project description, subject to all the terms and conditions of the above referenced Grant
Agreement.

Grant Amount (Minus AIPP if applicable):

‘The Amount of this Notice of Obligation:

The Total Amount of all Previously Issued Notices of Obligation:
The Total Amount of al! Notices of Obligation to Date:
Note: Contract amonnts may exceed the total grant amonnt, but the invoices paid by the grant will not exceed the orant amonst.

Department Rep. Approver:
Title:

Signature:

Date:

1 Administrarive and/or Jdirect Cost — generally, the legislation authorizing the issuance of bonds prohibits the use of its proceeds for
indirect expenses (e.g. penalty fees or damages other than pay for work performed, attorney fees, and administrative fees). Such use of
bond proceeds shall not be allowed unless specifically authorized by statute.

Page 18 of 23




EXHIBIT C
Special Conditions (If Fiscal Agent Required or Anti Donations Issues Exist)

Page 19 of 23



EXHIBIT D
Project Budget Worksheet

Detalled Exponlliore Phn
DATE!

Hezs offunds

Avquisition Conlrat Prics
Acisition Clocngd, sg:L0ker
OFSiles

Site Work

Dirett Conslrudion Cosa
Contlngemoy (<3%5)
Avchiseelal » Dedgn foes
Acdiifecucal - Supavirion fery
Enginesring feze

Real eslate altornzylolier legat fees
Accmmting Feen

Inpact Fees

Ddlding permits & refatd casts
Approiaal

Market amlysis

Environmenlel assessmus,
Sollg report

Survey

Mareing

Courseof ¢onstruiion inswrance
Hazard &, labifity insurance
Realpropedyiases

Persoral propeaty taked

Tenart relocelicn experies
Oltx InfirecuSo. Costs

Tedel s

Deailed Frocweniont Flan
Cae

Request | Reguest 2

Request 3 Requesi4 Regucd 5

Requesi 6

Regquesl 7

Reques B

Reguest 9

Subakanitel
Retpet 10| Request 11| Complation

Loass
comgldion

Total

BBt ey

oz |ex| asatant

on faf cad s
S fe]s]

.—]

36 ] £

0] 6] [ |

%]

kT |

]

W h |

0]

|

Inslation Dale

Alicigated ComplelionDate  Upo ofFunds_Precwrmcnl Tspe Procume) Code Expmplion,  Anlicipalsd Con

Page 20 of 23



1.

EXHIBIT E
Data Sharing Provisions for New Mexico Capital Outlay Agreements

Introduction:

This Data Sharing Provisions Exhibit (“Exhibit") is incorporated into the New Mexico Capital Qutlay
Agreements (“Agreements”) between the State of New Mexico (“State”) and [Insert Partner Name]
("Partner”). This Exhibit outlines the terms and conditions under which data will be shared between
the Parties to ensure compliance with New Mexico state laws and regulations, focusing on data
privacy, security, and compliance.

Definitions:

a. Authorized User: An empioyee, agent, assign, representative, independent contractor, or other
person or entity authorized by Partner or State to access, use, or disclose information through
this exhibit.

b. Confidential Information: All data or information shared in confidence, with the expectation that it
will not be disclosed in an identifiable form. This includes data that is exempt from public
disclosure under the New Mexico Inspection of Public Records Act (§ 14-2-1 et seq. NMSA 1978)
or other relevant laws.

c. Data Storage: Electronic media that hold recorded information.

d. Data Transmission: The process of moving information over a network from its source to one or
more destinations.

e. Direct Identifier: Records or data containing personal identifiers such as names, addresses, and
social security numbers.

f. Disclosure: Permission to access, release, transfer, or otherwise communicate confidential
information by any means to any third party, except as authorized by the Party that controls the
record.

g. Encryption involves using algorithms to encode data, rendering it unreadable without a specific
key. It may be necessary during data fransmission and/or storage.

h. Information: Any data, figures, statistics, or other facts provided or learned about someone or
something, including Confidential Information, that may be legally transmitted under this Exhibit.

i. Limited Dataset: A data file that omits Direct Identifiers.

j- Protected Personally Identifiable information: Sensitive personal details such as social security

numbers and financial account numbers, with specific exclusions as outlined in the Agreements.

Purpose:

The purpose of this exhibit is to promote transparency, facilitate information sharing between the
parties, support better policy and decision-making, and enhance public services through collaborative
data analysis from various sources.

Use of Information:
Page 21 of 23



Vi

VII.

a.

Use of Information obtained or created under this exhibit shall be strictly limited to the purposes
stated herein and in the agreements. The parties agree not to sell Information to third parties or
use it for commercial, solicitation, or political purposes.

Each Pariy shall serve as the custodian of the Information and comply with all conditions for its
use, including security measures to prevent unauthorized access.

The Parties shall follow all relevant federal and state laws and regulations governing the use of
such Information.

Safeguarding Information:

a.

Confidentiality: Access to Coniidential Information shall be limited to the minimum necessary to
accomplish the purposes of this Exhibit. Authorized Users must adhere to the confidentiality
reguirements.

Security: Security practices shall comply with the requirements of the New Mexico Department of
Information Technology Act and related regulations. The Parties agree to notify each other within
three business days of any suspected or actual security breach.

Information Storage and Transmission: Data Storage and Transmission shall take place on an
encrypted server with appropriate security controls.

Re-Disclosure of iInformation:

The Pariies agree not to disclose Information except as required by law or with prior written approval
of the other Party. If there is a public records request, the Party receiving it shall notify the other Party
within three business days.

Ownership of Information;

Legal title to Information shall remain with the provider. The Partner grants the State a royalty-free,
non-exclusive, non-transferable license to use the Information in furtherance of the purposes cutiined
in this Exhibit.

Page 22 of 23



EXHIBIT F
NM DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION PROVISIONS

The City of Rio Communities shall agree to comply with the following Provisions:

1.
2.

Yk

Assume the lead role for the Project.

Be responsible for all applicable design, environmental and archaeological clearances, and right-of-way
acquisition, in accordance with current local, state, federal laws, Uniform Relocation Act, and current
design practices and specifications.

Be responsible for project development, project construction, construction management, and testmg
Utilize the Project Control Number in all correspondence and submittals to the Department.

Adopt a written resolution of support for the Project, including as applicable an assumption of
ownership, liability, and maintenance responsibility for the scope, or related amenities and required
funding to support the Project.

Complete the Project using current American Public Works Association (APWA) specifications,
mmplemented Grantee’s design standards and specifications, or Department specifications.

Use Rental Rate Blue Book rates, if not provided in the Department established equipment rates, in the
implementation of this Project. Any equipment rates not found in the Department established rates shall
be reimbursed at the Blue Book rates.

The City of Rioc Communities shall agree to comply with the following Lighting and Signal Provisions as
applicable:

1.

L2

10.

Afier subject signal system(s) has/have been constructed, make provisions for and provide, at its own
expense, all electrical energy, routine maintenance such as lamp replacement, emergency shutdown in
case of accidental damage or equipment failure and make any repairs necessary due to accidental
damage to, or equipment failure of, the signal head and poles.

In the event that accidental damage or equipment failure should occur, provide for equipment shut
down/or emergency traffic conirol as needed. In addition, should the accidental damage or equipment
failure involve the Controller (and cabinet) or the loop detection system, promptly notify the Traffic
Technical Support Bureau of the Department.

[n the event that the traffic signal should be rendered completely inoperable as a result of accidental
damage, secure the intersection with stop signs at all approach legs until such time as the traffic signal is
made operable.

Make ample future provisions in its budget each year for the cost of maintaining and providing energy to
the traffic signals and telephone service to the signal system and intersection lighting.

At its own expense, maintain the signal controller and control equipment (the “Controller”) including
and maintenance of the machine vision vehicle detection system with cameras and emergency vehicle
pre-empt system and repair or replace the Controller in the event the Controller and/or cabinet is
damaged or there is an equipment failure.

After the installation of the roadway lighting system, if any, provide any and all utilities, maintenance,
and such other items as may be necessary of continued satisfactory operatlon of said subject lighting
System.

Make all timing adjustments to the Signal Control equipment and review the Signal System(s) for
efficient and satisfactory operation.

Obtain approval from the Department for all signal equipment prior to installation.

Require the construction contractor to name the Department and the Grantee as an additional insured in
the construction contractor’s general liability policy.

Enter into a Signalization and Lighting Agreement with the Department’s Traffic Technical Support
Bureau as required.

Page 23 of 23



Changes Between 2023 and 2025 Capital Outlay Boilerplates

1. Project Budget Requirements

* 2025: Introduces a mandatory Project Budget (procurement + expenditure plan
with milestones), which must be approved before reimbursement starts.

2023: Does not mention a formal “Project Budget” requirement; instead, it relies more
heavily on the issuance of Notices of Obligation as a gating mechanism.

2. Risk Assessment & Special Conditions

» 2025: Requires a pre-agreement risk assessment and allows the Department to
unilaterally update Exhibit D with special conditions without a formal
amendment.

» 2023: No formal risk assessment or unilateral update clause. Any amendments
require mutual written agreement.

3. Obligation and Expenditure Timelines

e 2023: Grantee must obligate 5% of funds in 6 months and expend 85% six months
before the reversion date.

= 2023: Increases initial obligation to 10% within one year; 85% expenditure
requirement remains six months before reversion.

4. Reporting Requirements
« 2023:
o Quarterly project activity reporting through DFA’s CPMS database.
o 30days’ advance notice required for reporting changes.
» 2025:
o Quarterly project activity reporting directly into a DFA-required database.

o Only 14 days’ advance notice of reporting changes.



7. Project Conditions & Restrictions

« 2023:

o Mustcomply with Procurement Code, Public Works Minimum Wage Act, and
Anti-Donation Clause.

o Cannot convert property use for 10 years without approval.

o Adds requirement to follow State’s Model Accounting Practices.

o Clarifies that property use restrictions last for useful life of the asset (not 10
years).

o Adds civil rights and equal employment nondiscrimination requirements
(includes sexual preference and handicap protections).

8. State Board of Finance (SBOF) Provisions
» 2023:
o SBOF conditions acknowledged but less detailed.
+ 2025

o Explicitly states SBOF can reassign bond proceeds if readiness milestones
(5% encumbrance within 6 months of bond issuance) are not met.

o Agreement may be suspended until readiness demonstrated.

9. Administrative & Legal Provisions
¢ 2023:
o Simp_ler amendment and assignment language.
o Non-appropriations and termination clauses required in subcontracts.
= 2025:

o Adds digital signatures, venue, and severability clauses.



S AMPLE
RESOLUTION

{ENTITY NAME)

PARTICIPATION [N CAPITAL OUTLAY PROGRAM ADMINISTERED
BY NEW MEXICO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

WHEREAS, the (ENTITY NAME) and the New Mexico Department of Transportation enter into a
Cooperative Agreement.

WHEREAS, the total cost of the project will be fSXXX.XX) to be funded by the parties hereto as follows:

a. New Mexica Department of Transportation’s share shall be 100% or {SXXX.XX)
and
b. {ENTITY NAMEF's proportional matching share shall be 0% or $0.00

TOTAL PROJECT COST IS (SXXX.XX)

{(ENTITY NAME] shall pay all costs, which exceed the total amount of {SXXX.XX].

Now therefore, be it resolved in official session that (ENTITY NAME) determines, resalves, and orders as
follows:

That the project for this Cooperative agreement is adopted and has a priority standing.

The agreement terminates on June 30, 20xx (for Laws of 20xx) and the (ENTITY NAME) incorporates all
the agreements, covenants, and understandings between the parties hereto concerning the subject matier hereof,
and all such covenants, agreements and understandings have been merged into the written agreement.

Y

NOW therefore, be it resolved by the (ENTITY NAME} to enter into Cooperative Agreement Control
Number (XXXX] with the New Mexico Department of Transportation for Capital Outlay (Laws of 20xx) to (LIST
SCOPE, ROUTE, AND TERMINI) within the control of the (ENTITY NAME]) in (CITY/COUNTY), New Mexico.

{(Appropriate Signatures below {Council, Commission, School Board, Tribe, Pueblo, Nation, etc.)

(PRINTED NAME, POSITION] DATE

{PRINTED NAME, POSITION) DATE




RESOLUTION 2025-xx

Rio Communities

PARTICIPATION IN CAPITAL OUTLAY PROGRAM ADMINISTERED
BY NEW MEXICO DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION

WHEREAS, the City of Rio Communities and the New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration
enter into a Grant Agreement.

WHEREAS, the total cost of the project will be $700,00.00 to be funded by the parties hereto as follows:

a. New Mexico Department of Transportation’s share shall be 100% or $700,000.00 of Which $7.000.00
Will be Allocated for Art in Public Places { AIPP)
and
b. City of Rio Communities proportional matching share shall be 0% or $0.00

TOTAL PROJECT COST IS $700,000.00

City of Rio Communities shall pay all costs, which exceed the total amount of $700,000.00

Now therefore, be it resoived in official session that City of Rio Communities determines, resolves, and
orders as follows:

That the project for this Grant agreement is adopted and has a priority standing.

The agreement terminates on June 30, 2029 {for Laws of 2025) and the City of Rie Communities
incorpoarates all the agreements, covenants, and understandings between the parties hereto concerning the
subject matter hereof, and all such covenants, agreements and understandings have been merged into the written
agreement.

NOW therefore, be it resolved by the City of Rio Communities to enter into Grant Agreement Project
Number 25-43211 with the New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration for Capital Qutlay Laws of 2025
to Acquire Land and Plan, Design, Construct, Furnish, and Equip a Public Warks Complex in Valencia County New
Mexico

City of Rio Communities Governing Body

Joshua Ramsell,

Mavyor

Lawrence R. Gordon, Arthur Apodaca,
Mayor Pro-tem/Councilor Councilor
Thomas Nelson, Matthew Marquez,
Councilor . Counciler

ATTEST:

Martin D. Moore, Acting Municipal Clerk



NEW MEXICC CAPITAL OUTLAY GRANT AGREEMENT
CAPITAL APPROPRIATION PROJECT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the State of New Mexico, Department of
- Finance & Administration, 407 Galisteo Street, Santa Fe, NM 87501, ("Department”) and the City of Rio
Communities, (“Grantee”) (individually “Party” and collectively “Parties”). This Agreement shall be
effective as of the date the Department executes it (“Effective Date”).

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, in the Laws of 2025, Chapter 159, Section 556, Paragraph 33, the Legislature made an
appropriation to the Department, funds from which the Department is making available to the Grantee
pursuant to this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Department is granting to Grantee, and the Grantee is accepting the grant of
funds from this appropriation, in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and obligations contained herein,
the parties hereby mutually agree as follows:

AGREEMENT
i. PROJECT DESCRIPTION, GRANT AMOUNT, AND REVERSION

A. 2513211 (“Project”) 6/30/2029 (“Reversion Date”). Laws of 2025, Chapter 159, Section 556,
Paragraph 33, Seven Hundred Thousand Dollars and No Cents, $700,000.00, to acquire land and
to plan, design, construct, furnish and equip a public works complex in Rio Communities in
Valencia county;.

B. Grantee's total reimbursements shall not exceed $700,000.00 Seven Hundred Thousand Dollars
and No Cents, (“Appropriation Amount”) minus the allocation for Art in Public Places (“AIPP
amount”), if applicable, $7,000.00 Seven Thousand Dollars and No Cents, which equails
$693,000.00 Six Hundred Ninety Three Thousand Dollars and No Cents (“Adjusted
Appropriation Amount”).

C. In the event of a conflict among the Appropriation Amount, the Reversion Date, as defined
herein and/or the purpose of the Project, as set forth in this Agreement, and the corresponding
appropriation language in the laws cited above in this Articie [, the language of the laws cited
herein shall control.

The information contained in Article | is referred to collectively as the “Project Description.”
Il. DISBURSEMENT LIMITATION
A. Upon the Effective Date, the Grantee shall submit to the Department a comprehensive
procurement plan and expenditure plan, detailing a Project timeline with milestones, required

procurements, and identifying expected expenditures per milestone (collectively, “Project
Budget”). The Department shall review and approve the Project Budget by approving a Notice of

Page 1 of 23



Department’s Obligation (“Notice of Obligation”), in accordance with the Project Description, a
sample of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B and Incorporated herein by reference. After
receipt of approved Notice of Obligation, the Grantee may be reimbursed for allowable costs up
to the Adjusted Appropriation Amount. This Agreement and any reimbursements up to the
Adjusted Appropriation Amount are expressly conditioned upon the following:

a. Irrespective of any Notice of Obligation, Grantee’s expenditures shall be made in
accordance with the Project Budget, on or before the Reversion Date and/or, if applicable,
any Early Termination Date; and

b. The total amount received by Grantee shall not exceed the lesser of:

. the Adjusted Appropriation Amount identified in Article I {B) herein; or
ii. the total of all amounts stated in the Notice(s) of Obligation evidencing the
Department has received and accepted Grantee's Third Party Obligation(s); and

C. Grantee's expenditures are made and accounted for pursuant to the State Procurement
Code, State's Model Accounting Practices, and execution of binding written obligations or
purchase orders with third-party contractors or vendors for the provision of services,
including professional services, or the purchase of tangible personal property and real
property for the Project (“Third Party Obligations"); and

d. Grantee’s submittal of timely Requests for Payment and supporting documentation in
accordance with the procedures set forth in this Agreement; and

€. In the event capital assets acquired with Project funds are to be sold, leased, or licensed
to or operated by a private entity, the sale, lease, license, or operating agreement:

I. must be approved by the applicable oversight entity (if any) in accordance with §§
13-6-2, 13-6-2.1, and 13-6-3; or

ii. If no oversight entity is required to approve the transaction, the Department of
Finance and Administration’s infrastructure Planning Development Division (IPDD)
must approve it as complying with the law.

B. Prior to the sale, lease, license, or operating agreement being approved pursuant to Articles 11(A)
(e} (i) or (i} herein, the Department may, in its sole and absolute discretion, unless inconsistent
with State Board of Finance imposed conditions, reimburse Grantee for necessary expenditures
incurred to develop the Project sufficiently to make the sale, lease, license, or operating
agreement commercially feasible, limited to planning and design expenditures; and

C. Grantee’s submission of documentation of all Third Party Obligations and amendments thereto
(including terminations) to the Department and the Department’s issuance of a Notice of
Obiligation for a particular amount in accordance with the terms of this Agreement shall be
governed by the following:

a. Grantee is authorized to budget the particular amount set forth in the Notice of
Obligation, execute the Third Party Obligation, and request the Third Party to begin work
after issuance of a Notice of Obligation by the Departrment.

b. Grantee acknowledges and agrees that any Third Party Obligations agreed to prior to
receiving a Notice of Obligation are its sole responsibility.

C. Grantee shall submit to the Department one copy of all Third Party Obligations and
amendments thereto (including terminations) as soon as possible after execution by the
Third Party but prior to execution by the Grantee.

Page 2 of 23



d. Department may, in its sole and absolute discretion, issue a Notice of Obligation for the
particular amount of a Third Party Obligation that only obiigates the Department to
reimburse Grantee’s expenditures made on or before the Reversion Date or an Early
Termination Date. The current Notice of Obligation form is incorporated herein and
attached hereto as Exhibit B.

D. Grantee shall provide all necessary qualified personnel, materials, and facilities to implement the
Project. The Grantee shall finance its share (if any) of the costs of the Project, including all Project
overruns.

E. Prior to entering into this Agreement, the Department conducted a risk assessment on the
Grantee and a project readiness review for the Project. In accordance with State Model
Accounting Practices, FIN 9.2, if the Department determines that the expenditure of Project
funds by the Grantee requires special conditions, those conditions are identified and listed in
Exhibit C, which is attached and incorporated by reference. The Parties agree that, to the extent
the Department, in its sole and absolute discretion, determines additional special conditions are
necessary or that existing special conditions are no longer required, it may update Exhibit C
from time to time without the need for a formal amendment of this Agreement.

F. Project funds shall not be used for purposes other than those authorized by the Department in
accordance with the Project Description.

G. Project funds cannot be used to reimburse the Grantee for indirect Project costs unless
specifically allowed by law.

I,  NOTICES

The following provisions shall apply whenever written notices, including written decisions, are tc be
given or received related to this Agreement.

A. The Grantee designates the person(s) listed below, or their successor, as their official
representative(s) concerning all matters related to this Agreement;

Grantee: City of Rio Communities

Name: Dr. Martin D. Moore

Title: City Manager

Address: 360 Rio Communities Blvd., Rio Communities, NM 87002
Email: mmoore@riocommunities.net

Telephone: 505-861-6803

B. The Grantee designates the person(s} listed below, or their successor, as their Fiscal Officer or
Fiscal Agent concerning all matters related to this Agreement:

Grantee: City of Rio Communities

Name: Jennifer Gauna

Title: Finance Clerk / CPO

Address: 360 Rio Communities Blvd., Rio Communities, NM 87002
Email: jgauna@riccommunities.net

Page 3 of 23



Telephone:  505-861-6803

C. The Department designates the persons listed below, or their successors, as the Points of
Contact for matters related to this Agreement.

Department: DFA/Local Government Division

Name: Loretta (Lori) Vasquez

Title: Grant Manager

Address: Bataan Memorial Bldg. Rm 202, Santa Fe NM 87501
Email: Loretta.Vasquez@dfa.nm.gov

Telephone:  505-469-6175

The Parties agree that all notices, including written decisions, related to this Agreement shall be sent to
the persons named above by email or regular mail. For mailings, notices shall be deemed to have been
given and received upon the date of the receiving party’s actual receipt or five (5) calendar days after
mailing, whichever shall first occur. In the case of email transmissions, the notice shall be deemed to
have been given and received on the date reflected on the delivery receipt of the email.

IV. TERM & DEADLINE TO EXPEND FUNDS

A. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and terminate on the 30% day of
June during the calendar year of the Reversion Date unless Terminated Before Reversion Date
(“Early Termination”) pursuant to Article V herein {collectively “Term”).

B. The Project's funds must be expended on or before the Reversion Date and, if applicable, the
Early Termination Date of this Agreement.

a. For purposes of this Agreement, it is not sufficient for the Grantee to encumber the
Project funds on its books on or before the Reversion Date or Early Termination Date.

b. For purposes of this Agreement, an expenditure of funds has occurred on the date the
particular quantity of goods is delivered to and received by the Granteg, title to the goods
is transferred to the Grantee, and/or as of the date particular services are rendered to
and accepted by the Grantee,

c. For purposes of this Agreement, an encumbrance of funds pursuant to a contract or
purchase order with a third party does not qualify as an expenditure.

V. EARLY TERMINATION

A. General Provision. The Department may terminate this Agreement before the Reversion Date
based on the Completion of the Project, Complete Expenditure of the Adjusted Appropriation,
and/or Violation of this Agreement. Early Termination hereunder includes:

a. Termination due to completion of the Project before the Reversion Date;

b. Termination due to complete expenditure of the Adjusted Appropriation Amount before
the Reversion Date;

¢. Termination for violation of the terms of this Agreement; or

d. Termination for suspected mishandling of public funds, including but not limited to fraud,
waste, abuse, and conflicts of interest,

Page 4 of 23



B. Non-appropriation. This Agreement is expressly contingent upon the New Mexico State
Legislature making sufficient appropriations and authorizations for the Project Description.

a. If the Legislature does not appropriate the Appropriation Amount, this Agreement shall
terminate upon the Department giving the Grantee written notice of such termination.
Such termination shall be effective as of the effective date of the law making the non-
appropriation.

I. The Departments decision as to whether sufficient appropriations or
authorizations are available shall be final. Grantee hereby waives any rights to
assert an impairment of contract claim against the State of New Mexico in the
event of Early Termination of this Agreement.

b. As used herein, “non-appropriate” or “non-appropriation” includes the following actions
by the New Mexico Legislature:

I. Deauthorization, reauthorization, or revocation of a prior authorization.

C. Grant Disbursements in the Event of Early Termination. In the event of Early Termination, the
Department's sole and absolute obligation to reimburse the Grantee is expressly conditioned
upon the limitations set forth in Article 1l above.

D. Notice. Either Party may terminate this Agreement prior to the Reversion Date by providing the
other Party with @ minimum of fifteen (15) days advance written notice of the Early Termination.
Grantee hereby waives any rights to assert an impairment of contract claim against the State of
New Mexico in the event of Early Termination of this Agreement by the Department.

VI. SUSPENSION OF NEW OR FURTHER OBLIGATIONS

A. Department, in its sole and absolute discretion, may provide written notice to Grantee to
suspend entering into further obligations. Upon the receipt of such written notice by the
Grantee:

a. Grantee shall immediately suspend entering into new or further written obligations with
third parties;
b. Department will suspend the issuance of any new or further Notice of Obligation under

this Agreement; and
¢. Department may direct the Grantee to implement a corrective action plan in accordance

with Article VI {D} herein.

B. In the event of Suspension of this Agreement, the Department’s sole and absolute obligation to
reimburse the Grantee is expressly conditioned upon the limitations set forth in Articte Il herein.

C. A suspension of new or further obligations under this Agreement shall remain in effect unless or
until the date the Grantee receives written notice given by the Department informing the
Grantee that the Suspension has been lifted or that the Agreement has been Early Terminated in
accordance with Article V herein. If the Suspension is lifted, the Department will consider further
requests for a Notice of Obligation.

D. Corrective Action Plan in the Event of Suspension. Where the Department, in its sole and
absolute discretion, directs Grantee to suspend entering into new or further written obligations

Page 5 of 23



with third parties pursuant to Article VI(A), the Department may, but is not obligated to, require
the Grantee to develop and implement a written corrective action plan to remedy the grounds
for the Suspension.

a.

b.

Such a corrective action plan must be approved by the Department and be signed by the
Grantee,

Failure to sign a corrective action plan or meet the terms and deadlines set forth in the
signed corrective action plan is hereby deemed a violation of the terms of this Agreement
for purposes of Early Termination, Article V{AX(C).

A corrective action plan shall be in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other equitable or
legal remedy authorized hereunder or at law, including but not limited to Early
Termination.

VI.  AMENDMENTS

Unless expressly stated otherwise herein, this Agreement shall not be altered, changed, or amended
except by an instrument in writing duly executed by both parties hereto with the same formalities as
this agreement.

VIII. REPORTING

A. Database Reporting

a.

b.

Grantee shall provide the Department with quarterly reports of Project activity, entering
the required Project information directly into a database required by the Department.
Additionally, Grantee shall certify on each Request for Payment form, attached hereto as
Exhibit A and incorporated herein, that all information provided in the database is true
and accurate, updates to the database have been maintained, and all Project activity
complies with applicable law and the terms of this Agreement.

Grantee hereby acknowledges that failure to perform and/or certify updates to the .
database will jeopardize the reimbursement of funds. The Department shall give Grantee
a minimum of fourteen (14) days’ advance written notice of any changes to the
information the Grantee is required to report.

At the Department's discretion, all reports required hereunder may be directed to and
facilitated through an electronic database.

Quarterly reports shall be due on the last day of the month, that is, 30 days prior to the
end of the quarter following the execution of this Agreement by the Department and
ending during the quarter of the submission of the final request for reimbursement for
the Project, or the following quarter.

B. Requests for Additional Information/Project Inspection
During the term of this Agreement and during the period of time during which the Grantee must
maintain records pursuant to Article VIli, the Department may:

i. request such additional information regarding the Project as it deems necessary; and
ii. conduct, at reasonable times and upon reasonable notice, onsite inspections of the
Project.

Page 6 of 23



Grantee shall respond to such requests for additional information within a reasonable period of
time, as established by the Department.

B. Requests for Additional information/Project Inspection

a. During the term of this Agreement and the Record Retention Period, the Department
may:
I. Request additional information regarding the Project as it deems necessary and
ii. Conduct on-site inspections of the Project at reascnable times and upon
reasonable notice.
b. Grantee shall respond to such requests for additional information within the time
established by the Department.

IX.  REQUEST FOR PAYMENT PROCEDURES

A. Grantee shall request payment by submitting the form attached hereto as Exhibit A. Payment
requests are subject to the following procedures:

a. Each Request for Payment must be in accordance with the Project Budget and contain
proof of payment by the Grantee or liabilities incurred by the Grantee.

i. Proof of payment must demonstrate the validity of an expenditure or liabilities
incurred by Grantee.

ii. However, Grantee may be reimbursed for unpaid liabilities only if the Department,
in its sole and absolute discretion, agrees to do so and in accordance with any
special conditions imposed by the Department.

ili. The Grantee shall make payment to those contractors or vendors within five {5)
business days from the date of receiving reimbursement from the Department or
in a shorter period than the Department may prescribe in writing.

Iv. The Department reserves the right to make such payments directly to the
contractors or vendors as a special condition under this Agreement.

v. The Grantee is required to certify to the Department proof of payment to the third-
party contractor or vendor within five (5) business days from the date the
Department reimburses the Grantee.

B. Until the Project is fully planned, designed, and all necessary procurements identified in the
Project Budget are completed, Grantee's reimbursements will be limited to the planning, design,
and procurement costs outlined in the Project Budget. Once the planning, designing, and
procuring stages are complete, the Grantee must obligate at least ten percent (10%) of the
Adjusted Appropriation Amount within one (1) year and must have utilized at least eighty-five
percent (85%) of the Adjusted Appropriation Amount six (6) months before the reversion date.

C. Deadlines, Grantee shall submit requests for Payments to the Department on the earlier of:

a. Immediately as Grantee receives them, but at a maximum of thirty (30) days from when
Grantee incurred the expenditure or liability; or

b. Twenty (20) days from the date of Early Termination or Reversion Date for expenditures
or liabilities incurred before the Early Termination date or Reversion Date.

Page 7 of 23



D. Grantee’s failure to abide by the requirements set forth in Article Il and Article IX herein may
result in the denial of its Request for Payment. Department reserves the right to reject a
payment request for the Project unless and until it is satisfied that the expenditures or liabilities
are for permissible purposes within the meaning of the Project Description, identified within the
Project Budget, and that the Grantee is otherwise in compliance with this Agreement.

a. Department’s authority to reject any Request for Payment is in addition to, and not in lieu
of, any other legal or equitable remedy available to the Department under this
Agreement, at law, orin equity.

PROJECT CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS

A. The following general conditions and restrictions shalt apply to the Project:

a. The Projects funds must be spent in accordance with all applicable state laws,
regulations, policies, and guidelines, including, but not limited to, the State Procurement
Code,

b. The Project’s expenditures and liabilities must be accounted for in accordance with the
State’s Model Accounting Practices, as amended from time to time.

€. The Project must be implemented in accordance with the New Mexico Public Works
Minimum Wage Act, Section 13-4-10 through 13-4-17 NMSA 1978, as applicable.

d. The Project must provide a public benefit above and beyond any incidental benefit to
private entities in accordance with applicable law, including, but not limited to, Article IX,
Section 14 of the Constitution of the State of New Mexico.

e. Without prior written approval from the Department and State Board of Finance, for the
useful life of any asset purchased under this Agreement, Grantee shall not convert any
property acquired, built, renovated, repaired, designed, or developed with Project funds
to uses other than those specified in the Project Description.

i. in addition to other remedies available at law or In equity, any disposal or
conversion of property acquired, buiit, renovated, repaired, designed, or
developed with Project funds without the Department’s and the Board of Finance's
express written approval will trigger the Department’s right to reimbursement
from Grantee of the Appropriated Amount, transfer proceeds from any disposition
of property to the State, or otherwise provide consideration to the State for the
Appropriated Amounts.

f. Grantee shall comply with all applicable federal and state laws, rules, and regulations
pertaining to civil rights and equal employment opportunity.

L. In accordance with all such laws, rules, and regulations, the Grantee agrees to
assure that no person shall, on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex,
sexual preference, age, or handicap, be excluded from participation in the Project,
use of the Project, employment with Grantee, or otherwise be denied
benefits/subject to discrimination for any activity performed under this
Agreement.

g Where the Department, in its sole and absolute discretion, determines Grantee has failed
to comply with the above conditions and restriction, Grantee agrees to take appropriate
steps to correct any deficiencies immediately. The Grantee’s failure to implement such
appropriate steps within a reasonable time, but no longer than thirty (30) days after

Page 8 of 23



notice from the Department, constitutes a breach of this Agreement and grounds for
Early Termination.

Xl.  REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

A. Reliance by Depariment.

a. Grantee expressly acknowledges that the Department relies on the representations and
warranties made by Grantee in this Agreement. Grantee acknowledges that such
representations and warranties are a material inducement for the Department to enter
into this Agreement and provide the Appropriated Amount.

b. Grantee shall ensure all representations and warranties provided herein are true,
accurate, and complete as of the date of the Effective Date and shall remain so
throughout the Term of this Agreement. Grantee is responsible for promptly notifying the
Department in writing of any changes or inaccuracies in the representations and
warranties contained herein.

B. Grantee hereby represents and wairants the following:

. Grantee has taken all necessary steps to attain the legal authority to receive and expend
the Project’s funds.

b. Grantee has duly authorized this Agreement, and the person executing it has authority to
do so. Once executed by Grantee, this Agreement shall constitute a binding obligation of
Grantee, enforceable according to its terms.

C. Grantee's obligations hereunder do not conflict with any law, ordinance, or resolution
applicable to Grantee, Grantee’s charter (if applicable), or any judgment or decree to
which Grantee is subject.

d. Grantee has independently confirmed that the Project Description, including, but not
limited to, the Appropriated Amount and Reversion Date, is consistent with the underlying
appropriation in law.

. Grantee’s governing body has duly adopted or passed as an official act a resolution,
motion, or similar action authorizing the person identified as the official representative of
the Grantee to sign and submit Requests for Payment on behalf of Grantee.

f. Grantee will abide by New Mexico laws regarding conflicts of interest, governmental

conduct, and whistleblower protection.

i. Grantee agrees explicitly none of its officers or employees or its designees or
agents, no member of the governing body, and no other public official of Grantee
who exercises any function or responsibility with respect to this Agreement, shall
have any interest, direct or indirect, in any contract or subcontract, or the
proceeds thereof, for the Project.

il. Further, Grantee will require all of its contractors to incorporate the language set
forth in this paragraph prohibiting conflicts of interest in all subcontracts.

g. No funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the Grantee, to any person for

influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of the State, any agency, or

body in connection with the awarding of any Third Party Obligation.
i. Grantee will require certifying language prehibiting lobbying to be included in the
award documents for all subawards, including subcontracts, loans, and
cooperative agreements.

jai]

m

Page B of 23



C. Consequences of False or Misleading Representations. If any representation or warranty made
by Grantee is found to be false or misleading, the Department shall have the right tc exercise
any or all of the following remedies:

a. Termination of Agreement: Department may terminate this Agreement immediately
upon written notice to the Grantee. '

b. Repayment of Grant Funds: Grantee shall repay all Appropriated Amounts disbursed
under this Agreement, upon demand by the Department.

. Other Remedies: Department may pursue any other remedies available at law or in

equity.

D. Survival of Representations and Warranties. The representations and warranties made by the
Grantee shall survive the Early Termination or expiration of this Agreement.

Xll.  PROJECT RECORDS

A. Grantee shall be strictly accountable for receipts and disbursements relating to the Project’s
funds. The Grantee shall follow generally accepted accounting principles and the State's Model
Accounting Practices and, if feasible, maintain a separate bank account or fund with a separate
organizational code to ensure separate budgeting and accounting of the funds.

B. For six (6) years following the Project’s completion (“Record Retention Period"), Grantee shall
maintain all Project-refated records, including, but not limited to, all financial records, requests
for proposals, invitations to bid, selection and award criteria, contracts and subcontracts,
advertisements, minutes of pertinent meetings, as well as records sufficient to fully account for
the amount and disposition of the Appropriated Amount from all sources budgeted for the
Project, the purpose for which such funds were used, and such other records as the Department
may prescribe.

C. Grantee shall make all Project records available to the Department, the Department’s
Independent Public Accountant, and the New Mexico State Auditor upon request. With respect to
the funds that are the subject of this Agreement, if the State Auditor or the Department finds any
funds were improperly expended, Grantee shall be required to reimburse the State all amounts
found to be improperly expended.

XUI. IMPROPERLY REIMBURSED FUNDS

If the Department determines part or all of the Appropriation Amount was improperly reimbursed to
Grantee, including but not limited to funds reimbursed to Grantee based upon fraud, mismanagement,
misrepresentation, misuse, violation of law by the Grantee, after ten (10) days’ notice to Grantee and
the opportunity to return such funds to the Department, the Department may offset any funds due to
Grantee from the State, until the Appropriation Amount is fully repaid.

Xiv. LIABILITY

Neither Party shall be responsible for liability incurred as a result of the other Party's acts or omissicns
in connection with this Agreement. Any liability incurred in connection with this Agreement is subject to

Page 10 of 23



immunities and limitations of the New Mexico Tort Claims Act.

XV. SCOPE OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement constitutes the entire and exclusive agreement between the Parties concerning the
subject matter hereof. The Agreement supersedes all prior or contemporaneous agreements,
understandings, discussions, communications, and representations, written ot verbal.

XVl. REQUIRED NON-APPROPRIATIONS CLAUSE

A. Grantee acknowledges and agrees to include a “non-appropriations” clause in all contracts
between it and other parties that are (i) funded in whole or part by funds made available under
this Agreement and (ii) entered into after the effective date of this Agreement that states:

a. "The terms of this Agreement are contingent upon sufficient appropriations and
authorization being made by the Legislature of the State of New Mexico (“Legistature”)
for the performance of this Agreement.

b. If the Legislature does not make sufficient appropriations and authorization, City of Rio
Communities may immediately terminate this Agreement by giving Contractor written
notice of such termination.

. The City of Rio Communities's decision as to whether sufficient appropriations are
available shall be final and accepted by the Contractor. Contractor hereby waives any
rights to assert an impairment of contract claim against the City of Rio Communities or
the State of New Mexico in the event of immediate or Early Termination of this Agreement
by the City of Rio Communities or the State Department of Finance and Administration.”

XVIl. REQUIRED TERMINATION CLAUSE

A. Grantee acknowledges and agrees to include the following termination clause in all contracts
that are (i) funded in whole or part by funds made available under this Agreement and (ii)
entered into after the effective date of this Agreement:

a. "This contract is funded in whole or in part by funds made available by the State of New
Mexico (“State”). Should the State terminate its Agreement with the City of Rio
Communities, the City of Rio Communities may terminate this contract immediately by
providing Contractor written notice of such termination.

b. In the event of termination pursuant to this paragraph, the City of Rio Communities's only
liability to Contractor shall be for goods and services delivered and accepted prior to the
termination date.”

XVIIl. COMPLIANCE WITH UNIFORM FUNDING CRITERIA

A. Throughout the term of this Agreement, Grantee shall:

a. Submit all reports of annual audits and agreed-upon procedures required by § 12-6-3(A)-
(B). NMSA 1978 by the due dates established in § 2.2.2 NMAC, reports of which must be a

Page 11 of 23



public record pursuant to § 12-6-5(A), NMSA 1978 within forty-five (45) days of delivery to
the State Auditor:

b. Have a duly adopted budget for the current fiscal year approved by its budgetary
oversight agency (if any};

¢. Timely submit all required financial reports to its budgetary oversight agency (if any); and

d. Use accounting methods and procedures consistent with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles and the State’s Model Accounting Principals to expend the Appropriated
Amount in accordance with applicable taw and account for and safeguard Project funds
and assets acquired with Project funds.

B. In the event Grantee fails to comply with the requirements of subparagraph A of this Article XVIlI,
Department may take one or more of the foltowing actions:

a. Suspend new or further obligations pursuant to Article VI(A) of this Agreement;
b. Require the Grantee to develop and implement a written corrective action plan pursuant
to Article VI(D) of this Agreement to remedy the non-compliance;
€. Impose special conditions to address the non-compliance by giving Grantee notice of
such special conditions in accordance with Article Ill of this Agreement;
.. The Parties agree that any special conditions imposed to address non-compliance
shall be incorporated into this Agreement, through Exhibit C, upon notice to
Grantee, without need for formal amendment of this Agreement;
il. Special conditions shall be binding and effective on the date that notice is deemed
to have been given pursuant to Article 1l or
d. Terminate this Agreement pursuant to Article V(A) of this Agreement.

XIX.  SEVERANCE TAX AND GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

A. Grantee acknowledges and agrees that the underlying appropriation for the Project may
originate from the issuance of tax-exempt severance tax bonds or general obligation bonds by
the State. Proceeds from such bonds are administered by the New Mexico State Board of
Finance ("SBOF"), an entity separate and distinct from the Department.

a. Grantee acknowledges and agrees:
I. It is Grantee's responsibility to determine through SBOF what (if any) conditions

are currently imposed on the Project;

it. Department’s failure to inform Grantee of an SBOF-imposed condition does not
affect the validity or enforceability of the condition;

iil. The SBOF may in the future impose further or different conditions upon the
Project; .

iv. All SBOF conditions are attached to the Project and Appropriation Amount without
the need for formal amendment of this Agreement;

v. Allapplicable SBOF conditions must be satisfied before the SBOF will release to the
Department funds subject to the condition(s) and

vi. The Department’s obligation to reimburse Grantee from the Project is expressly
contingent upon the satisfaction of the then-current SBOF conditions.

B. Grantee acknowledges and agrees SBOF may, at its sole and absolute discretion, require
reimbursement or remove eligibility for bond proceeds for the Project if the Project doesn't

Page 12 of 23



proceed sufficiently.

a. Grantee must comply with the requirement to encumber five percent (5%) of Project
funds within six months of bond issuance as certified by Grantee in the Bond
Questionnaire and Certification documents submitted to the SBOF.

b. Failure to comply may result in the reassignment of the bond proceeds. Upon
reassignment of bond proceeds, this Agreement will be suspended until the entity has
demonstrated readiness as determined by the SBOF and the Department.

C. Grantee acknowledges and agrees that this Agreement is subject to the SBOF's Bond Project
Disbursements rule, § 2.61.6, NMAC, as may be amended from time to time or re-codified.

XX. GENERAL PROVISIONS

A. Assignment: Grantee's rights and obligations under this Agreement are personal and may not be
transferred or assigned without the prior written consent of the State. Any attempt at
assignment or transfer without such consent shall be void. Any assignment or transfer of
Grantee’s rights and obligations approved by the State shall be subject to the provisions of this
Agreement.

B. Subcontractors: Grantee shall not enter any subgrant or subcontract in connection with its
obligations under this Agreement without the prior written approval of the State. Upon request,
Grantee shall submit to the Department a copy of each such subgrant or subcontract.

C. Binding Effect: Except as otherwise provided, all provisions of this Agreement, including the
benefits and burdens, shall extend to and be binding upon the Parties’ respective successors and
assigns.

D. Authority: Each Party represents and warrants to the other that the execution and delivery of this
Agreement and the performance of such Party’s obligations have been duly authorized.

E. Captions and References: The captions and headings in this Agreement are for the convenience
of reference only and shall not be used to interpret, define, or limit its provisions. All references
in this Agreement to sections {(whether spelled out or using the § symbol), subsections, exhibits,
or other attachments are references to sections, subsections, exhibits, or other attachments
contained herein or incorporated as a part hereof, unless otherwise noted.

F. Counterparts: This Agreement may be executed in multiple, identical, original counterparts, each
of which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which, taken together, shall constitute the

same agreement.

G. Digital Signatures: If any signatory signs this agreement using a digital signature in accordance
with the State Policies regarding the use of digital signatures, then any agreement or consent to
use digital signatures within the electronic system through which that signatory signed shall be
incorporated into this Agreement by reference.

H. Modification: Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any modification to this

Agreement shall only be effective if agreed to in a formal amendment, properly executed and
approved in accordance with applicable New Mexico law and State fiscal policies and rules.

Page 13 of 23



Modifications permitted under this Agreement, other than Agreement amendments, shall
conform to the policies issued by the State.

Statutes, Regulations, Fiscal Rules, and Other Authority: Any reference in this Agreement to a
statute, regulation, policy, or other authority shall be interprated to refer to such authority then
current, as may have been changed or amended after the Effective Date of this Agreement.

. External Terms and Conditions: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the State shall
not be subject to any provision included in any terms, conditions, or agreements appearing on
Grantee’s or a subcontractor's website or any provision incorporated into any click-through or
online agreements related to the Work unless that provision is specifically referenced in this
Agreement.

- Severability: The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement shall not affect
the validity or enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement, which shall remain in full
force and effect, provided that the Parties can continue to perform their obligations under this
Agreement in accordance with its intent.

. Survival of Certain Agreement Terms: Any provision of this Agreement that imposes an obligation
on a Party after the termination or expiration of this Agreement shall survive the termination or
expiration of this Agreement and shall be enforceable by the other Party.

- Third Party Beneficiaries: Except for the Parties’ respective successors and assigns described in
this Agreement, it does not and is not intended to confer any rights or remedies upon any
person or entity other than the Parties. Enforcement of this Agreement and all rights and
obligations hereunder are reserved solely to the Parties. Any services or benefits that third
parties receive as a result of this Agreement are incidental to this Agreement and do not create
any rights for such third parities.

- Waiver: A Party’s failure or delay in exercising any right, power, or privilege under this
Agreement, whether explicit or by lack of enforcement, shall not operate as a waiver, nor shall
any single or partial exercise of any right, power, or privilege preclude any other or further
exercise of such right, power, or privilege.

- Standard and Manner of Performance: Grantee shall perform its obligations under this
Agreement in accordance with the highest standards of care, skill, and diligence in Grantee’s
industry, trade, or profession.

. Licenses, Permits, and Other Authorizations: Grantee shall secure, prior to the Effective Date,
and maintain at all times during the term of this Agreement, at its sole expense, all licenses,
certifications, permits, and other authorizations required to perform its obligations under this
Agreement and shall ensure that ail employees, agents, and subcontractors secure and maintain
at all times during the term of their employment, agency or subcontractor, all license,
certifications, permits and other authorizations required to perform their obligations in relation
to this Agreement.

. Publicity: Any Publicity regarding the subject matter of this Agreement may not be released
without prior written approval from the Department. For purposes of this agreement, “Publicity”

Page 14 0f 23



means notices, informational pamphlets, press releases, email responses, research, reports,
signs, and similar public notices prepared by or for the Grantee or jointly with others.

a. Grantee shall obtain written approval prior to issuing any press release or making any
public announcement regarding this agreement. Grantee agrees to obtain approval of the
Department in advance with respect to all Public Relations, all communications with
media, or all communications with any other member of the public with respect to this
agreement, except to acknowledge that an agreement does exist.

b. For purposes of this agreement, “Public Relations” includes community relations and
means those activities dedicated to maintaining the Department's image or maintaining
or promoting understanding and favorable relations with the community or public at
large or any segment of the public.

. Violations of either Article XX (Q)(a) or (b) shall constitute a material Breach of Agreement.

R. Data Sharing: The State intends to secure and collate specific data generated by Grantee under
this Agreement to use in support of the State’s organizational, policy-making, and management
of public resource functions. State, in accordance with Exhibit E, attached hereto and
incorporated herein by reference, reserves the right to require Grantee and/or its subcontractors
to provide specific data relevant to the above-listed functions. Data provided by Grantee may be
incorporated into existing or future developed State integrated analysis tools or databases,
including but not limited to geographic information system (GIS) networks and databases
accessible by the public. Dissemination of data collected may include historical data and
projections based on such historical data.

a. To the extent any data transferred as part of this Agreement is legally determined to be
the property of Subrecipient or its subcontractors, Subrecipient and/or its subcontractors
grants State a nonexclusive, fully paid-up right and license to reproduce, use, distribute,
do derivative works based on, and archive data transferred as part of this Agreement.

S. Venue and Choice of Law: This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance
with the laws of the State of New Mexico, without regard to any conflict of law provisions. Any
legal suit, action, or proceeding arising out of or related to this Agreement shall be instituted
exclusively in the district courts located in Santa Fe, New Mexico. The Parties hereby irrevocably
submit to the exclusive jurisdiction and venue of such courts in_any such suit, action, or
proceeding. The Parties waive any objection to the laying of the venue of any such suit, action, or
proceeding in the district courts of Santa Fe, New Mexico, and irrevocably waive and agree not to
plead or clzim in any such court that any such suit, action, or proceeding brought in any such
court has been brought in an inconvenient forum.

[SIGNATURE PAGE AND EXHIBITS FOLLOW]
[THIS SPACE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]

Page 15 of 23



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed this Agreement as of the Department's date of
axecution.

APPROVED BY DEPARTMENT:

Cabinet Secretary, Wayne Propst:

Signature Date

Chief Financial Officer, Mackie Romero:

Signature Date

Local Government Division Director, Cecilia Mavrommatis:

Signature Date

AS TO LEGAL FORM AND SUFFICIENCY

General Counsel’s Office:

Signature

(Print Name) (Title)

Page 16 of 23



APPROVED BY GRANTEE:

Entity Name

Official with Authority to Bind Grantee:

Signature

(Print Name)

Date

Fiscal Officer or Chief Financial Officer:

Sighature

{Print Name)

Date

(Title)

(Title)

As To Legal Form And Sufficiency

Signature

(Print Name)

Date

Page 17 of 23

(Title)



EXHIBIT A
Request for Payment Form and Certification

J
1

““STATE Of NOW MEXICE
GRANT APFROPRUTION
Request for Payment Form
Exhibit A
L Grantod INPrmation Kus mes s Fs Subemre 13 Fors L. Payrent Computation
' A Poerent Rocgsess Mo,
A Gt B Senr Atnount I o
B #ddtress; _ T. APP Ao O Appbeakis] | 5200
B e
A _— D, Funds Reqquesied o Date: iato
- B Armcont Rt this Payte
—— F. Reversion Amoun: (Fapplicabiey  $040
o S g B, [ Srast Regprest for Fagrmient [Fappbealis
=N Prajest Tiie:
F, Gramt Esgoiration Dates
.
. Certifications
| zbwym&;mmmwmﬁmammﬁmmuwmmmm Bt rugt Bemiied s
D Suterission: arsd appooval oF 3 Promct Sudest o5 por Arsds I, Sociion 408 tha

=9 =
hui?:mpfmm Hﬁwmmﬂqummmmmmmmwk
am-awmsmwmm
ihﬁmﬁﬂm&mmmmmmmmhmm
1mmmmm&wmmmymm-mmwwm=ﬂwmm
£alty oorplies with Artide B, Sec. 38 ofthe New Mexico Coarshssion, known 5 the “antidonxSon™ o,

Loy iy st Sl gt rtabions S wareartieg cawde in th Aikeanns et fug, oourabe, aed aeiglate 8 of S Sk of
thiss seque, aod will Cormsd 1 B 50 Futugbott thes e of T Spveemant, 1 skt LN s Msesaris o g wieTar e
are 3 rraxsesiyl inducessing for e Decarwent we apgrtve this Dy reguess,

Grantee Figcal Dficer ¢ Fineal Bt (F apphcabis ) Grantwe Repmesentxtive
Prirstad Mame

Dage:

Uwrner ol * T B

i pasmify thar the Stare Agsacy feendial and vender fe informaltion agres with e alwws submited Fforaatio.

ASD Offioer

Thaba Dnasion Grant kanager Dale

Raeised 7

[THIS SPACE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]

Page 18 of 23



EXHIBIT B
Notice of Department's Obligation Form

Modoe of Oblization to Reimburse Grontee 2

DATE:
TG Depurtment Representative: . Gzt Manages
FROM: Grintes Entity:

Geamter Offesy] Repressarative:
SUBJECT: Notice of Obligatics to Retmbrrss Genstes
Gerar Namber
Gt Termmation Dyt

&5 the designated sepresectutive of the Departooest for Grant Agreement number
entered inte betoeen Grantes and e Department, T certify that the Geanoee has sabmitted to fhe Dapartment the
folowing thisd party shligation execored, in weiting, by the third pantr’s anthorized represenmative:

Vendor or Cootesetor
Third Paty Obligarion Amenme

Vended oe Confracton
Third Pasty Oblization Amennt:

I cectify dhat the Stzte is ssning this Notice of Obligation to Reimburss Geantes for promissible prrposes within
the scope of e project description, subject to 2l the terms and couditions of the shove refersnced Grast
AgpeEmment.

Gerant Amonnt Blens ATPP I apalicable):

The Amennt of this Natics of Oblipton:

The Toml Amennt of all Previondy Iisued Notices of Oblgation:
The Tonl Amennz of oll Notices of Obligarion to Date:

Doere Conrrast sosawuss sy aoed rhe med grony dmsiont, ez mhe Invoives paid By whe grawr wall mor sssed vhe ZFETT ST,

3000

Department Rep. Appoovesn "
Tite: _ Grant Manrager

Siprararre:

Drape:

¢ Sdmirisrramive and for Indwect Cost — penenliy, the leghlmon aothosizing the iwsasee of boads probibies the ose of s procsuds for
mdires expenses (e.g, pendiey fees oo damages othay this pay for wodk pesfonmed, stiomey Sees, zod adminisuative foes). Snoh mse of
boxd procesds shall aot be dllowed oelews spediBorlly anthoczed by starany.

Revtaed 72045

[THIS SPACE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]

Page 19 of 23



EXHIBIT C
Special Conditions (If Fiscal Agent Required or Anti Donations Issues Exist)

The capital outlay oversight requires grantees” accounting methods and procedures, including their intemal control
framework, to be scrutinized, so as to safeguard State capial outlay appropriations and assets acquired with such
appropriations.

This Capital Qutlay Special Grant Condition{s) Exhibit C is necessary pursuant to § 6-3b-1 et seq., NMSA 1978
(Public Finance Accountability Act) and MAPS Fin 9.2, due to the Grantees’ material weaknesses, significant
deficiencies, or findings that raised concerns as to the ability to expend grant funds in accordance with applicable law in
the organization’s FY[20XX] audit. The Special Conditions identified below apply to the authorized agent, [insert the
Grantee or Fiscal Agent name].

Procurement - All purchases or contracts the Grantee enters that shall use funding from the Department capital
appropriations grant must be approved by the Department prior to the initiation of implementing purchasing documents.
The Grantee shall receive such prior approval via official comespondence from the Department, which may be through
letter or email. The Grantee shall submit the following to the Department in pursuit of prior approval: purchasing
policies and procedures, CFO certification, documentation of management and program approval, policies and procedures
goveming purchasing and contracting, a copy of the current procurement and contracting policies, and documentation
regarding informing staff responsible for purchasing and contracting on such policies and procedures.

Budget - Provide documentation of approval of your current budget from DFA Local Government or other
authoritative agency. Provide policies and procedures on who is responsible for and how annual budgets (expenditures
and revenue) are established, monitored and adjusted. Provide a corrective action plan on how budget issues identified in
your audit will be/have been addressed. Also include documentation on how staff responsible for budgeting is informed
on budget policies and procedures.

Capiral Assets - Provide a complete list of inventory including inventory control numbers and current location.
Provide policies and procedures on capital assets and inventory and specify how the proposed purchased items will be
included, tagged, and tracked in capital asset inventory. Also include documentation on how staff responsible for capital
assets is informed on capital asset policies and procedures.

Travel and Per Diem - Provide policies and procedures on travel and per diem. Also include how staff who
travel and those responsible for travel reimbursement are informed on travel and per diem policies and procedures.

Timely Audits — Provide policies and procedures on annual audits. Provide documentation on how and who is
responsibie for msuring that annual audits are completed timely. Also include documentation on how staff responsible for
the annual audit is informed on audit policies and progedures.

Cash Management — policies and procedures on cash management of federal funds. Provide procedures used to
draw and disburse federal funds. Provide procedures to reconcile draw amoumts, deposits and disbursernents; and to
prepare federal cash reporting documents to ensure compliance with federat regulations.

The <Gramtee> was required to, and has provided sufficient documentation regarding [insert specific names of the
Special Condition(s)], as referenced in the <Grantee>"s [20XX] Audit file. Therefore, the criteria to enter into this
agreement have been met.

Page 1 of 1 Revised 7/2025

[THIS SPACE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]

Page 20 of 23



EXHIBIT D

Project Budget Worksheet *
*(Provided separately when grant agreement issued to Grantee)

[THIS SPACE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]

Page 21 0f 23



EXHIBIT E
Data Sharing Provisions

I

13

Exhibit E
Data Sharing Provisions for New Mexico Capiial Outlay Agreements

Introduction:

This Data Sharing Provisions Exhibit ("Exhibif} is incorporated into the New Maxico Capital Ouilay
Agreements ("Agreements”) between the Siale of New Mexico ("State”) and [Insert Pariner Namej
("Partner”). This Exhibit outiines the terms and conditions under which data will be shared between
the Parties to ensure compliance with New Mexico state laws and reguiations, focusing on data

privacy, security, and compliance,
Befinitions:
2. Authorized User: An employee, agent, assign, representative, independent contractor, or other

person or enfity authorized by Partner or State fo access, use, or disclose information through
this exhibit.

b. Confidential Information: All data or Information shared in confidence, with the expectation that it
will not be disclosed in an identifiable form. This mcludes data that is exempt from public
disclosure under the New Mexico Inspection of Pubfic Records Act (§ 14-2-1 et seq. NMSA 1978)
or other relevant laws.

¢. Data Storage: Blectronic media that hold recorded information,

d. Data Transmission: The process of moving information over a network from its source to one or
more destinations.

e Diraci ldentifier Records or data containing personal identifiers such as names, addresses, and
social security numbers.

f. Disclosure: Pemission to access, releass, transfer, or otherwise commemicate confidential
information by any means to any third party, except as authorized by the Party that controls the
record.

g. Encryption involves using algorithms to encode data, rendering it unreadable without a specific
key. It may be necessary during data transmission andior storage.

h information: Any data, hgures, statistics, or other facts provided or leamed ahout someane or
something, inciuding Confidental Information, that may be legally transmitted under this Exhibit.

i Limited Dataset A data file that omits Direct ldentifiers,

j-  Protected Personally Idenfifiable Information: Sensitive personal detalls such as social security

numbers and financial account numbers, with specific exclusions as outiined in the Agreements.

Purpose:

The purpose of this exhibit is to promote transparency, facilitate information sharing between the
parties, support better policy and decision-making, and enhance public services through collaborative

1of2

[THIS SPACE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]

Page 22 of 23



VL

VIL

daia analysis from vanous sources.

Use of Information:

a. Use of Information obtained or creatsd under this exhibit shall be siricHy limited io the purposes
stated herein and in the agreements. The parties agree not to sell Information fo third pariiss or
use it for commercial, solicitation, or pofitical PRPOSeSs.

b. Each Parly shall serve as the custodian of the Information and coniply with all condifions for its
use, including secusity measures to prevent unauthorized access.

¢. The Parties shall follow all relovant federal and state lzws and regulations govaming the use of

such Information,

Safeguarding Information:

a. Cenfidentiality: Access to Confidential Information shall be limitad to the minimum necessary fo
accomplish the purpeses of this Exhibit. Authorized Usars rmust adhere o the confidendality
reguirements.

b. Security: Security practices shall comply with the requirements of the New Mexico Depariment of
information Technoiogy Act and related reguiations. The Parties agree to notify each other within
three business days of any suspected or actual securiy hreach.

¢. Information Storage an Transmission: Data Storage and Transmission shall tzke Flace on an
encrypted server with appropriate secirity controls.

Re-Disclosime of laformation:

The Parties agree not to disciose Information except as required by law or with prior written approval
of the ciher Parly. I there is a public records request, the Party recaiving it shall nofify the other Farty
within three business days.

Ornership of Information:

Legal #ifle to Information shall remain with the provider. The Pariner granis the State a rovally-free,

non-exciusive, nontransferable ficense 1o use the Informaiion in furtherance of the purposes outfined
n this Exhibit.

Zof2

Page 23 of 23



¥ UOHI3S JUBWadIEY 1WeIg Inok Jo T afed uo S|yl puiy ues NoA o "104s|Bulpuny 8yl eum saqlosap 3ey) adengue) aaesida) 1819440 au) S| s)y | :aBendue uopendosddy
“JUBLLIZB.FE RIS IN0A U) JUnowe ay3 yajew mMnoys sju "108fold S|Us 10y AYIUD INOA 0) PORIBME JUNOLIE 18103 DU} d21u3 unowy uopelidolddy

V1 UONI9S ‘WswiaaBy Juel9 Jnok Jo T afed uo Siyy puly uEd NOA o “uaquinu ) peusjsse s,13a(01d INoA L7 alaford

*Aausfe 10 uopezIURRIC IN0A JO owBL Bl 49)ug :pwey Aiug

U0} 8L Jo uood do1 8U3 U) Tk - UDRBWIOU] 13801 J91uT :T doyg

_.! wa4 198png 199fold m>_.~m_.m_m3 isueponusy) aﬁm.z-%.m_

levondo} syuswiwog 1euouppy

'$]  papunyjajioNunowy

S ﬁ.., ..m...,.. .* : .w : ﬁ.. . _ _..wauo._.

- $] - - s - $1 - $ - $ dinb3/s3131U3A
. $ N . Y $ - $ - [ - dinb3ys|ung
- g B N ¢ - $ B & - $ uonRonasuos

$ N o 3 $ - g1 - $ | {anuosyieauduz) udsag
N $ N - g - 3 - g - ¢ Bujpueg
. $ - - BT 3 - % - 4 S8IPNIS 1EIUBKINOL AU
N sl - : 3 - $ - 3 - $ S8|pMS 1e2(g01082Y,
N ¢ N ~ |- $ - $ - F uoysinbay
- $ - - ¢ - ¢ - 3 - $ MOY B Jusllases
- 1 - ST Y I s - $ - . $ Sl Iem

{umop mo.:.:
31eq o} papuny
unowy Joy aleq

1805 199{014 18101 VBTN aaanog Ju papund suncwy frodaen 198png

- $  ‘unowy uopepdolddy

:qivefoid
:a3engue uonepdoaddy PuweN fnug

198png 199f01d dAne1siSaT - g HqIUXT



RESOLUTION 2025-xx

Rio Communities

PARTICIPATION IN CAPITAL OUTLAY PROGRAM ADMINISTERED
BY NEW MEXICO DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION

WHEREAS, the City of Rio Communities and the New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration
enter into a Grant Agreement.

WHEREAS, the total cost of the project will be $870,00.00 to be funded by the parties hereto as follows:

a. New Mexico Department of Transportation’s share shali be 100% or $870,000.00
and
b. City of Rio Communities proportional matching share shall be 0% or $0.00

TOTAL PROJECT COST IS $876,000.00

City of Rio Communities shall pay all costs, which exceed the total amount of $870,000.00

Now therefore, be it resolved in official session that City of Rio Communities determines, resolves, and
orders as follows:

That the project for this Grant agreement is adopted and has a priority standing.

The agreement terminates on June 30, 2027 {for Laws of 2025} and the City of Rio Communities
incorporates all the agreements, covenants, and understandings between the parties hereto concerning the
subject matter hereof, and all such covenants, agreements and understandings have been merged into the written
agreement.

NOW therefore, be it resolved by the City of Rio Communities to enter into Grant Agreement Project
Number 25-J3210 with the New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration for Capital Outlay Laws of 2025
to Purchase and Equip Vehicles and Equipment, Including Ambulances, for the Police and Fire Departments in Rio
Communities in Valencia County New Mexico.
City of Rio Communities Governing Body

Joshua Ramsel|

Mayor

Lawrence R. Gordon, Arthur Apodaca,
Mayor Pro-tem/Councilor Councilor
Thomas Nelson, Matthew Marquez,
Councilor Councilor

ATTEST:

Martin D. Moare, Acting Municipal Clerk



NEW MEXICO CAPITAL OUTLAY GRANT AGREEMENT
CAPITAL APPROPRIATION PROJECT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the State of New Mexico, Department of
Finance & Administration, 407 Galisteo Street, Santa Fe, NM 87501, (“Department”) and the City of Rio
Communities, (“Grantee”) (individually “Party” and collectively “Parties™. This Agreement shall be
effective as of the date the Department executes it (“Effective Date”).

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, in the Laws of 2025, Chapter 159, Section 555, Pa ragraph 33, the Legislature made an
appropriation to the Department, funds from which the Department is making available to the Grantee
pursuant to this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Department is granting to Grantee, and the Grantee is accepting the grant of
funds from this appropriation, in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and obligations contained herein,
the parties hereby mutually agree as follows:

AGREEMENT
. PROJECT DESCRIPTION, GRANT AMOUNT, AND REVERSION

A. 253210 (“Project”) 6/30/2027 (“Reversion Date”). Laws of 2025, Chapter 159, Section 555,
Paragraph 33, Eight Hundred Seventy Thousand Dollars and No Cents, $870,000.00, to purchase
and equip vehicles and equipment, including ambulances, for the police and fire departments in
Rio Communities in Valencia county;.

B. Grantee's total reimbursements shall not exceed $870,000.00 Eight Hundred Seventy Thousand
Dollars and No Cents, (“Appropriation Amount”) minus the allocation for Art in Public Places
("AIPP amount”), if applicable, $0.00 No Dollars and No Cents, which equals $870,000.00 Eight
Hundred Seventy Thousand Dollars and No Cents ("“Adjusted Appropriation Amount”).

C. In the event of a conflict among the Appropriation Amount, the Reversion Date, as defined
herein and/or the purpose of the Project, as set forth in this Agreement, and the corresponding
appropriation language in the laws cited above in this Article I, the language of the laws cited
herein shall control.

The information contained in Article  is referred to collectively as the “Project Description.”
Il.  DISBURSEMENT LIMITATION
A. Upon the Effective Date, the Grantee shall submit to the Department a comprehensive
procurement plan .and expenditure plan, detailing a Project timeline with milestones, required
procurements, and identifying expected expenditures per milestone (collectively, “Project

Budget”). The Department shall review and approve the Project Budget by approving a Notice of
Department’s Obligation (“Notice of Obligation”), in accordance with the Project Description, a

Page 1 of 23



sample of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by reference. After
receipt of approved Notice of Obligation, the Grantee may be reimbursed for allowable costs up
to the Adjusted Appropriation Amount. This Agreement and any reimbursements up to the
Adjusted Appropriation Amount are expressly conditioned upon the following:

a. lrrespective of any Notice of Obligation, Grantee’s expenditures shall be made in
accordance with the Project Budget, on or before the Reversion Date and/or, if applicable,
any Early Termination Date; and

b. The total amount received by Grantee shall not exceed the lesser of:

. the Adjusted Appropriation Amount identified in Article | (B) herein; or
ii. the total of all amounts stated in the Notice(s) of Obligation evidencing the
Department has received and accepted Grantee's Third Party Obligation(s); and

¢. Grantee’s expenditures are made and accounted for pursuant to the State Procurement
Code, State’s Model Accounting Practices, and execution of binding written obligations or
purchase orders with third-party contractors or vendors for the provision of services,
including professional services, or the purchase of tangible personal property and real
property for the Project (“Third Party Obligations™); and

d. Grantee's subrnittal of timely Requests for Payment and supporting documentation in
accordance with the procedures set forth in this Agreement; and

e. In the event capital assets acquired with Project funds are to be soid, leased, or licensed
to or operated by a private entity, the sale, lease, license, or operating agreement:

i. must be approved by the applicable oversight entity (if any) in accordance with §8§
13-6-2, 13-6-2.1, and 13-6-3; or

ii. If no oversight entity is required to approve the transaction, the Department of
Finance and Administration's Infrastructure Planning Development Division (IPDD)
must approve it as complying with the law.

B. Prior to the sale, lease, license, or operating agreement being approved pursuant to Articles I{A)
() (i} or (i) herein, the Department may, in its sole and absolute discretion, unless inconsistent
with State Board of Finance imposed conditions, reimburse Grantee for necessary expenditures
incurred to develop the Project sufficiently to make the sale, lease, license, or operating
agreement commercially feasible, limited to planning and design expenditures; and

C. Grantee's submission of documentation of all Third Party Obligations and amendments thereto
{including terminations) to the Department and the Department's issuance of a Notice of
Obligation for a particular amount in accordance with the terms of this Agreement shall be
governed by the following:

a. Grantee is authorized to budget the particular amount set forth in the Notice of
Obligation, execute the Third Party Obiigation, and request the Third Party to begin work
after issuance of a Notice of Obligation by the Department.

b. Grantee acknowledges and agrees that any Third Party Obligations agreed to prior to
receiving a Notice of Obligation are its sole responsibility.

C. Grantee shall submit to the Department one copy of all Third Party Obligations and
amendments thereto {including terminations) as soon as possible after execution by the
Third Party but prior to execution by the Grantee,

d. Department may, in its sole and absolute discretion, issue a Notice of Obligation for the
particular amount of a Third Party Obligation that only obligates the Department to

Page 2 of 23



reimburse Grantee's expenditures made on or before the Reversion Date or an Early
Termination Date. The current Notice of Obligation form is incorporated herein and
attached hereto as Exhibit B.

D. Grantee shall provide all necessary qualified personnel, materials, and facilities to implement the
Project. The Grantee shall finance its share (if any) of the costs of the Project, including all Project
overruns.

E. Prior to entering into this Agreement, the Department conducted a risk assessment on the
Grantee and a project readiness review for the Project. In accordance with State Model
Accounting Practices, FIN 9.2, if the Department determines that the expenditure of Project
funds by the Grantee requires special conditions, those conditions are identified and listed in
Exhibit C, which is attached and incorporated by reference. The Parties agree that, to the extent
the Department, in its sole and absolute discretion, determines additional special conditions are
necessary or that existing special conditions are no longer required, it may update Exhibit C
from time to time without the need for a formal amendment of this Agreement.

F.  Project funds shall not be used for purposes other than those authorized by the Department in
accordance with the Project Descri ption.

G. Project funds cannot be used to reimburse the Grantee for indirect Project costs unless
specifically allowed by law.

Ifl.  NOTICES

The foilowing provisions shall apply whenever written notices, including written decisions, are to be
given or received related to this Agreement.

A. The Grantee designates the person(s) listed below, or their successor, as their official
representative(s) concerning all matters related to this Agreement:

Grantee: City of Rio Communities

Name: Dr. Martin D. Moore

Title: City Manager

Address: 360 Rio Communities Blvd., Rio Communities, NM 87002
Email: mmoore@riocommunities.net

Telephone:  505-861-6803

B. The Grantee designates the person(s) listed below, or their successor, as their Fiscal Officer or
Fiscal Agent concerning all matters related to this Agreement:

Grantee: City of Rio Communities

Name: Jennifer Gauna

Title: Finance Clerk / CPO

Address: 360 Rio Communities Blvd., Rio Communities, NM 87002
Email: Jgauna@riocommunities.net

Telephone:  505-861-6803

Page 3 of 23



C. The Department designates the persons listed below, or their successors, as the Points of
Contact for matters related to this Agreement.

Department: DFA/Lacal Government Division

Name: Loretta (Lori) Vasquez

Title: Grant Manager

Address: Bataan Memorial Bldg. Rm 202, Santa Fe NM 87501
Email: Loretta.Vasquez@dfa.nm.gov

Telephone:  505-469-6175

The Parties agree that all notices, including written decisions, related to this Agreement shall be sent to
the persons named above by email or regular mail. For mailings, notices shall be deemed to have been
given and received upon the date of the receiving party's actual receipt or five (5) calendar days after
mailing, whichever shall first occur. In the case of email transmissions, the notice shall be deemed to
have been given and received on the date reflected on the delivery receipt of the email.

IV.  TERM & DEADLINE TO EXPEND FUNDS

A. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and terminate on the 30 day of
June during the calendar year of the Reversion Date unless Terminated Before Reversion Date
(“Early Termination”) pursuant to Article V herein (collectively “Term”).

B. The Project's funds must be expended on or before the Reversion Date and, if applicable, the
Early Termination Date of this Agreement.

a. For purposes of this Agreement, it is not sufficient for the Grantee to encumber the
Project funds on its books on or before the Reversion Date or Early Termination Date.

b. For purposes of this Agreement, an expenditure of funds has occurred on the date the
particular quantity of goods is delivered to and received by the Grantee, title to the goods
is transferred to the Grantee, and/or as of the date particular services are rendered to
and accepted by the Grantee.

C. For purposes of this Agreement, an encumbrance of funds pursuant to a contract or
purchase order with a third party does not qualify as an expenditure.

V.  EARLY TERMINATION

A. General Provision. The Department may terminate this Agreement before the Reversion Date
based on the Completion of the Project, Complete Expenditure of the Adjusted Appropriation,
and/or Violation of this Agreement, Early Termination hereunder includes:

a. Termination due to completion of the Project before the Reversion Date;

b. Termination due to complete expenditure of the Adjusted Appropriation Amount befare
the Reversion Date;

¢. Termination for violation of the terms of this Agresment; or

d. Termination for suspected mishandling of public funds, including but not limited to fraud,
waste, abuse, and conflicts of interest,

Page 4 of 23



B. Non-appropriation. This Agreement is expressly contingent upon the New Mexico State
Legislature making sufficient appropriations and authorizations for the Project Description.

a. If the Legislature does not appropriate the Appropriation Amount, this Agreement shall
terminate upon the Department giving the Grantee written notice of such termination.
Such termination shall be effective as of the effective date of the law making the non-
appropriation. _

i. The Department's decision as to whether sufficient appropriations or
authorizations are available shall be final. Grantee hereby waives any rights to
assert an impairment of contract claim against the State of New Mexico in the
event of Early Termination of this Agreement.

b. As used herein, “non-appropriate” or “non-appropriation” includes the following actions
by the New Mexico Legislature:

i. Deauthorization, reauthorization, or revocation of a prior authorization.

C. Grant Disbursements in the Event of Early Termination. In the event of Early Termination, the
Department's sole and absolute obligation to reimburse the Grantee is expressly conditioned
upon the limitations set forth in Article Il above.

D. Notice. Either Party may terminate this Agreement prior to the Reversion Date by providing the
other Party with a minimum of fifteen (15) days advance written notice of the Early Termination.
Grantee hereby waives any rights to assert an impairment of contract claim against the State of
New Mexico in the event of Early Termination of this Agreement by the Department.

VI. SUSPENSION OF NEW OR FURTHER OBLIGATIONS

A. Department, in its sole and absolute discretion, may provide written notice to Grantee to
suspend entering into further obligations. Upon the receipt of such written notice by the
Grantee:

a. Grantee shall immediately suspend entering into new or further written obligations with
third parties;

b. Department will suspend the issuance of any new or further Notice of Obfigation under
this Agreement; and

¢. Department may direct the Grantee to implement a corrective action plan in accordance
with Article VI (D} herein,

B. In the event of Suspension of this Agreement, the Department’s sole and absolute obligation to
reimburse the Grantee is expressly conditioned upon the limitations set forth in Article Il herein.

C. A suspension of new or further obligations under this Agreement shall remain in effect unless or
until the date the Grantee receives written notice given by the Department informing the
Grantee that the Suspension has been lifted or that the Agreement has been Early Terminated in
accordance with Article V herein. If the Suspension is lifted, the Department will consider further
requests for a Notice of Obligation.

D. Corrective Action Plan in the Event of Suspension. Where the Department, in its sole and
absolute discretion, directs Grantee to suspend entering into new or further written obligations

Page 50f 23



with third parties pursuant to Article VI(A), the Department may, but is not obligated to, require
the Grantee to develop and implement a written corrective action plan to remedy the grounds
for the Suspension.

a.

b.

Such a corrective action plan must be approved by the Department and be signed by the
Grantee.

Failure to sign a corrective action plan or meet the terms and deadlines set forth in the
signed corrective action plan is hereby deemed a violation of the terms of this Agreement
for purposes of Early Termination, Article V(A)(C).

A corrective action plan shall be in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other equitable or
legal remedy authorized hereunder or at law, including but not limited to Early
Tetmination.

VII.  AMENDMENTS

Unless expressly stated otherwise herein, this Agreement shall not be altered, changed, or amended
except by an instrument in writing duly executed by both parties hereto with the same formalities as
this agreement.

VHI.  REPORTING

A. Datahase Reporting

d.

b.

Grantee shall provide the Department with quarterly reports of Project activity, entering
the required Project information directly into a database required by the Department,
Additionally, Grantee shall certify on each Request for Payment form, attached hereto as
Exhibit A and incorporated herein, that all information provided in the database is true
and accurate, updates to the database have been maintained, and all Project activity
complies with applicable law and the terms of this Agreement,

Grantee hereby acknowledges that failure to perform and/or certify updates to the
database will jeopardize the reimbursement of funds. The Department shall give Grantee
a minimum of fourteen (14) days’ advance written notice of any changes to the
information the Grantee is required to report.

At the Department's discretion, all reports required hereunder may be directed to and
facilitated through an electronic database.

Quarterly reports shall be due on the last day of the month, that is, 30 days prior to the
end of the quarter following the execution of this Agreement by the Department and
ending during the quarter of the submission of the final request for reimbursement for
the Project, or the following quarter.

B. Requests for Additional Information/Project Inspection
During the term of this Agreement and during the period of time during which the Grantee must
maintain records pursuant to Article VIli, the Department may:

I. request such additional information regarding the Project as it deems necessary; and
ii. conduct, at reasonable times and upon reasonable notice, onsite inspections of the
Project.

Page 6 of 23



Grantee shall respond to such requests for additional information within a reasonable period of
time, as established by the Department.

B. Requests for Additional Information/Project Inspection

a. During the term of this Agreement and the Record Retention Period, the Department
may:
. Request additional information regarding the Project as it deems necessary and
ii. Conduct on-site inspections of the Project at reasonable times and upon
reasonable notice.
b. Grantee shall respond to such requests for additional information within the time
established by the Department.

IX.  REQUEST FOR PAYMENT PROCEDURES

A. Grantee shall request payment by submitting the form attached hereto as Exhibit A. Payment
requests are subject to the following procedures:

a. Each Request for Payment must be in accordance with the Project Budget and contain
proof of payment by the Grantee or liabilities incurred by the Grantee.

. Proof of payment must demonstrate the validity of an expenditure or liabilities
incurred by Grantee. :

ii. However, Grantee may be reimbursed for unpaid liabilities only if the Department,
in its sole and absolute discretion, agrees to do so and in accordance with any
special conditions imposed by the Department.

iii. The Grantee shail make payment to those contractors or vendors within five {5)
business days from the date of receiving reimbursement from the Department or
in a shorter period than the Department may prescribe in writing.

Iv. The Department reserves the right to make such payments directly to the
contractors or vendors as a special condition under this Agreement.

v. The Grantee is required to certify to the Department proof of payment to the third-
party contractor or vendor within five (5) business days from the date the
Department reimburses the Grantee.

B. Until the Project is fully planned, designed, and all necessary procurements identified in the
Project Budget are completed, Grantee’s reimbursements will be limited to the planning, design,
and procurement costs outlined in the Project Budget. Once the planning, designing, and
procuring stages are complete, the Grantee must obligate at least ten percent (10%) of the
Adjusted Appropriation Amount within one (1) year and must have utilized at least eighty-five
percent (85%) of the Adjusted Appropriation Amount six (6) months before the reversion date.

C. Deadlines. Grantee shall submit requests for Payments to the Departrment on the earlier of:

a. Immediately as Grantee receives thern, but at a maximum of thirty (30} days from when
Grantee incurred the expenditure or liability; or

b. Twenty (20) days from the date of Early Termination or Reversion Date for expenditures
or liabilities incurred before the Early Termination date or Reversion Date.

Page 7 of 23



D. Grantee's failure to abide by the requirements set forth in Article || and Article IX herein may
result in the denial of its Request for Payment. Departtnent reserves the right to reject a
payment request for the Project unless and until it is satisfied that the expenditures or liabilities
are for permissible purposes within the meaning of the Project Description, identified within the
Project Budget, and that the Grantee is otherwise in compliance with this Agreement.

a. Department's authority to reject any Request for Payment is in addition to, and not in lieu
of, any other legal or equitable remedy available to the Department under this
Agreement, at law, or in equity.

PROJECT CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS

A. The following general conditions and restrictions shall apply to the Project:

a. The Project's funds must be spent in accordance with all applicable state laws,
regulations, policies, and guidelines, inciuding, but not limited to, the State Procurement
Code.

b. The Project's expenditures and liabilities must be accounted for in accordance with the
State’s Model Accounting Practices, as amended from time to time.

C. The Project must be implemented in accordance with the New Mexico Public Works
Minimum Wage Act, Section 13-4-10 through 13-4-17 NMSA 1978, as applicable.

d. The Project must provide a public benefit above and beyond any incidental benefit to
private entities in accordance with applicable law, including, but not limited to, Articie iX,
Section 14 of the Constitution of the State of New Mexico.

e. Without prior written approval from the Department and State Board of Finance, for the
useful life of any asset purchased under this Agreement, Grantee shall not convert any
property acquired, built, renovated, repaired, designed, or developed with Project funds
to uses other than those specified in the Project Description.

i. In addition to other remedies available at law or in equity, any disposal or
conversion of property acquired, built, renovated, repaired, designed, or
developed with Project funds without the Department’s and the Board of Einance’s
express written approval will trigger the Department's right to reimbursement
from Grantee of the Appropriated Amount, transfer proceeds from any disposition
of property to the State, or otherwise provide consideration to the State for the
Appropriated Amounts.

f. Grantee shall comply with all applicable federal and state iaws, rules, and regulations
pertaining to civil rights and equal employment opportunity.

i. In accordance with all such laws, rules, and regulations, the Grantee agrees to
assure that no person shall, on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex,
sexual preference, age, or handicap, be excluded from participation in the Project,
use of the Project, employment with Grantee, or otherwise be denied
benefits/subject to discrimination for any activity performed under this
Agreement.

g. Where the Department, in its sole and absolute discretion, determines Grantee has failed
to comply with the above conditions and restriction, Grantee agrees to take appropriate
steps to correct any deficiencies immediately. The Grantee's failure to implement such
appropriate steps within a reasonable time, but no longer than thirty (30) days after

Page 8 of 23



notice from the Department, constitutes a breach of this Agreement and grounds for
Early Termination.

Xl.  REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

A. Reliance by Department.

a. Grantee expressly acknowledges that the Department relies on the representations and
warranties made by Grantee in this Agreement. Grantee acknowledges that such
representations and warranties are a material inducement for the Department to enter
into this Agreement and provide the Appropriated Amount.

b. Grantee shail ensure all representations and warranties provided herein are true,
accurate, and complete as of the date of the Effective Date and shall remain so
throughout the Term of this Agreement. Grantee is responsible for promptly netifying the
Department in writing of any changes or inaccuracies in the representations and
warrarties contained herein.

B. Grantee hereby represents and warrants the following:

a. Grantee has taken all necessary steps to attain the legal authority to receive and expend
the Project’s funds.

b. Grantee has duly authorized this Agreement, and the person executing it has authority to
do so. Once executed by Grantee, this Agreement shall constitute a binding obligation of
Grantee, enforceable according to its terms.

€. Grantee's obligations hereunder do not conflict with any law, ordinance, or resolution
applicable to Grantee, Grantee's charter (if applicable), or any judgment or decree to
which Grantee is subject.

- Grantee has independently confirmed that the Project Description, including, but not
limited to, the Appropriated Amount and Reversion Date, is consistent with the underlying
appropriation in law.

- Grantee's governing body has duly adopted or passed as an official act a resolution,
motion, or similar action authorizing the person identified as the official representative of
the Grantee to sign and submit Requests for Payment on behalf of Grantee.

f. Grantee will abide by New Mexico laws regarding conflicts of interest, governmental

conduct, and whistleblower protection.

I. Grantee agrees explicitly none of its officers or employees or its designees or
agents, no member of the governing body, and no other public official of Grantee
who exercises any function or responsibility with respect to this Agreement, shall
have any interest, direct or indirect, in any contract or subcontract, or the
proceeds thereof, for the Project.

ii. Further, Grantee will require all of its contractors to incorporate the language set
forth in this paragraph prohibiting conflicts of interest in all subcontracts.

g- No funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the Grantee, to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of the State, any agency, or
body in connection with the awarding of any Third Party Obligation.

. Grantee will require certifying language prohibiting lobbying to be included in the
award documents for all subawards, including subcontracts, loans, and
cooperative agreements.

(o3

4]

Page 9 of 23



C. Consequences of False or Misleading Representations. If any representation or warranty made
by Grantee is found to be false or misleading, the Department shall have the right to exercise
any or all of the following remedies:

a. Termination of Agreement: Department may terminate this Agreement immediately
upen written notice to the Grantee.

b. Repayment of Grant Funds: Grantee shall repay all Appropriated Amounts disbursed
under this Agreement, upon demand by the Departrment.

¢. Other Remedies: Department Mmay pursue any other remedies available at law or in
equity.

D. Survival of Representations and Warranties. The representations and warranties made by the
Grantee shall survive the Early Termination or expiration of this Agreement.

XIl.  PROJECT RECORDS

A. Grantee shall be strictly accountable for receipts and disbursements relating to the Project's
funds. The Grantee shall follow generally accepted accounting principles and the State's Model
Accounting Practices and, if feasible, maintain a separate bank account or fund with a separate
organizational code to ensure separate budgeting and accounting of the funds.

B. For six (6) years following the Project’s completion (“Record Retention Period”), Grantee shall
maintain all Project-related records, including, but not limited to, all financial records, requests
for proposals, invitations to bid, selection and award criteria, contracts and subcontracts,
advertisements, minutes of pertinent meetings, as well as records sufficient to fully account for
the amount and disposition of the Appropriated Amount from all sources budgeted for the
Project, the purpose for which such funds were used, and such other records as the Department
may prescribe,

C. Grantee shall make all Project records available to the Department, the Department’s
Independent Public Accountant, and the New Mexico State Auditor upon request. With respect to
the funds that are the subject of this Agreement, if the State Auditor or the Department finds any
funds were improperly expended, Grantee shall be required to reimburse the State all amounts
found to be improperly expended.

Xlll.  IMPROPERLY REIMBURSED FUNDS

If the Department determines part or all of the Appropriation Amount was improperly reimbursed to
Grantee, including but not limited to funds reimbursed to Grantee based upon fraud, mismanagement,
misrepresentation, misuse, violation of Jaw by the Grantee, after ten (10) days’ notice to Grantee and
the opportunity to return such funds to the Department, the Department may offset any funds due to
Grantee from the State, until the Appropriation Amount is fully repaid.

XIV.  LIABILITY

Neither Party shall be responsible for liability incurred as a result of the other Party's acts or omissions
in connection with this Agreement, Any liability incurred in connection with this Agreement is subject to

Page 10 of 23



immunities and limitations of the New Mexico Tort Claims Act,

XV.

SCOPE OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement constitutes the entire and exclusive agreement between the Parties concerning the
subject matter hereof. The Agreement supersedes all prior or contemporaneous agreements,
understandings, discussions, communications, and representations, written or verbal.

XVL

REQUIRED NON-APPROPRIATIONS CLAUSE

A. Grantee acknowledges and agrees to include a “non-appropriations” clause in all contracts

XVIL.

between it and other parties that are (i) funded in whole or part by funds made available under
this Agreement and (ii) entered into after the effective date of this Agreement that states:

a. “The terms of this Agreement are contingent upon sufficient appropriations and

authorization being made by the Legislature of the State of New Mexico ("Legislature™)
for the performance of this Agreement,

- If the Legislature does not make sufficient appropriations and authorization, City of Rio

Communities may immediately terminate this Agreement by giving Contractor written
notice of such termination.

- The City of Rio Communities’s decision as to whether sufficient appropriations are

available shall be final and accepted by the Contractor. Contractor hereby waives any
rights to assert an impairment of contract claim against the City of Rioc Communities or
the State of New Mexico in the event of immediate or Early Termination of this Agreement
by the City of Rio Communities or the State Department of Finance and Administration.”

REQUIRED TERMINATION CLAUSE

A. Grantee acknowledges and agrees to include the following termination clause in all contracts

XVIIL

that are (i) funded in whole or part by funds made available under this Agreement and (in)
entered into after the effective date of this Agreement:

a. “This contract is funded in whole or in part by funds made available by the State of New

Mexico (“State”). Should the State terminate its Agreement with the City of Rio
Communities, the City of Rio Communities may terminate this contract immediately by
providing Contractor written notice of such termination.

. Inthe event of termination pursuant to this paragraph, the City of Rio Communities’s only

liability to Contractor shall be for goods and services delivered and accepted prior to the
terminaticn date.”

COMPLIANCE WITH UNIFORM FUNDING CRITERIA

A. Throughout the term of this Agreement, Grantee shall:

a. Submit all reports of annual audits and agreed-upon procedures required by § 12-6-3(A)-

(B), NMSA 1978 by the due dates established in § 2.2.2 NMAC, reports of which must be a

Page 11 of 23



public record pursuant to § 12-6-5{A), NMSA 1978 within forty-five (45} days of delivery to
the State Auditor;

b. Have a duly adopted budget for the current fiscal year approved by its budgetary
oversight agency (if any);

C. Timely submit all required financial reports to its budgetary oversight agency (if any); and

d. Use accounting methods and procedures consistent with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles and the State’s Model Accounting Principals to expend the Appropriated
Amount in accordance with applicable law and account for and safeguard Project funds
and assets acquired with Project funds.

B. In the event Grantee fails to comply with the requirements of subparagraph A of this Article XVII,
Department may take one or more of the following actions:

a. Suspend new or further obligations pursuant to Article VI{A) of this Agreement;
b. Require the Grantee to develop and implement a written corrective action plan pursuant
to Article VI(D) of this Agreement to remedy the non-compliance;
. Impose special conditions to address the non-compliance by giving Grantee notice of
such special conditions in accordance with Article IIf of this Agreement;
i. The Parties agree that any special conditions imposed to address non-compliance
shall be incorporated into this Agreement, through Exhibit C, upon notice to
Grantee, without need for formal amendment of this Agreement;
ii. Special conditions shall be binding and effective on the date that notice is deemed
to have been given pursuant to Article Il or
d. Terminate this Agreement pursuant to Article V(A) of this Agreement.

XIX.  SEVERANCE TAX AND GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

A. Grantee acknowledges and agrees that the underlying appropriation for the Project may
originate from the issuance of tax-exempt severance tax bonds or general obligation bonds by
the State. Proceeds from such bonds are administered by the New Mexico State Board of
Finance ("SBOF"), an entity separate and distinct from the Department.

a. Grantee acknowledges and agrees:
L It is Grantee’s responsibility to determine through SBOF what (if any) conditions

are currently imposed on the Project;

ii. Department’s failure to inform Grantee of an SBOF-imposed condition does not
affect the validity or enforceability of the condition:

iil. The SBOF may in the future impose further or different conditions upon the
Project;

iv. All SBOF conditions are attached to the Project and Appropriation Amount without
the need for formal amendment of this Agreement; :

v. All applicable SBOF conditions must be satisfied before the SBOF will release to the
Department funds subject to the condition(s) and

vi. The Department’s obligation to reimburse Grantee from the Project is expressly
contingent upon the satisfaction of the then-current SBOF conditions.

B. Grantee acknowledges and agrees SBOF may, at jts sole and absolute discretion, require
reimbursement or remove eligibility for bond proceeds for the Project if the Project doesn't

Page 12 of 23



proceed sufficiently.

a. Grantee must comply with the requirement to encumber five percent (5%) of Project
funds within six months of bond issuance as certified by Grantee in the Bond
Questionnaire and Certification documents submitted to the SBOF.

b. Failure to comply may result in the reassignment of the bond proceeds. Upon
reassignment of bond proceeds, this Agreement will be suspended until the entity has
demonstrated readiness as determined by the SBOF and the Department,

- Grantee acknowledges and agrees that this Agreement is subject to the SBOFs Bond Project
Disbursements rule, § 2.61.6, NMAC, as may be amended from time to time or re-codified.

GENERAL PROVISIONS

. Assignment: Grantee’s rights and obligations under this Agreement are personal and may not be
transferred or assigned without the prior written consent of the State. Any attempt at
assignment or transfer without such consent shall be void. Any assignment or transfer of
Grantee’s rights and obligations approved by the State shall be subject to the provisions of this
Agreement. '

. Subcontractors: Grantee shall not enter any subgrant or subcontract in connection with its
obligations under this Agreement without the prior written approval of the State. Upon request,
Grantee shall submit to the Department a copy of each such subgrant or subcontract.

- Binding Effect: Except as otherwise provided, all provisions of this Agreement, including the
benefits and burdens, shall extend to and be binding upon the Parties’ respective successors and
assigns.

- Authority: Each Party represents and warrants to the other that the execution and delivery of this
Agreement and the performance of such Party’s obligations have been duly authorized.

. Captions and References: The captions and headings in this Agreement are for the convenience
of reference only and shall not be used to interpret, define, or limit its provisions. All references
in this Agreement to sections (whether spelled out or using the § symbol), subsections, exhibits,
or other attachments are references to sections, subsections, exhibits, or other attachments
contained herein or incorporated as a part hereof, unless otherwise noted.

- Counterparts: This Agreement may be executed in multiple, identical, original counterparts, each
of which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which, taken together, shall constitute the
same agreement,

- Digital Signatures: if any signatory signs this agreement using a digital signature in accordance
with the State Policies regarding the use of digital signatures, then any agreement or consent to
use digital signatures within the electronic system through which that signatory signed shall be
incorporated into this Agreement by reference.

. Modification: Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any modification to this

Agreement shall only be effective if agreed to in a formal amendment, properly executed and
approved in accordance with applicable New Mexico law and State fiscal policies and rules.

Page 13 of 23



Modifications permitted under this Agreement, other than Agreement amendments, shall
conform to the policies issued by the State.

Statutes, Regulations, Fiscal Rules, and Other Authority: Any reference in this Agreement to a
statute, regulation, policy, or other authoerity shall be interpreted to refer to such authority then
current, as may have been changed or amended after the Effective Date of this Agreement.

. External Terms and Conditions:; Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the State shall
not be subject to any provision included in any terms, conditions, or agreements appearing on
Grantee’s or a subcontractor's website or any provision incorporated into any click-through or
online agreements related to the Work unless that provision is specifically referenced in this
Agreement,

. Severability: The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement shall not affect
the validity or enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement, which shall remain in full
force and effect, provided that the Parties can continue to perform their obligations under this
Agreement in accordance with its intent.

. Survival of Certain Agreement Terms: Any provision of this Agreement that imposes an obiigation
on a Party after the termination or expiration of this Agreement shall survive the termination or
expiration of this Agreement and shall be enforceable by the other Party.

- Third Party Beneficiaries: Except for the Parties’ respective successors and assigns described in
this Agreement, it does not and is not intended to confer any rights or remedies upon any
person or entity other than the Parties. Enforcement of this Agreement and all rights and
obligations hereunder are reserved solely to the Parties. Any services or benefits that third
parties receive as a result of this Agreement are incidental to this Agreement and do not create
any rights for such third parties.

- Waiver: A Party's failure or delay in exercising any right, power, or privilege under this
Agreement, whether explicit or by lack of enforcement, shall not operate as a waiver, nor shall
any single or partial exercise of any right, power, or privilege preclude any other or further
exercise of such right, power, or privilege.

- Standard and Manner of Performance: Grantee shall perform its obligations under this
Agreement in accordance with the highest standards of care, skill, and diligence in Grantee’s
industry, trade, or profession.

. Licenses, Permits, and Other Authorizations: Grantee shall secure, prior to the Effective Date,
and maintain at all times during the term of this Agreement, at its sole expense, all licenses,
certifications, permits, and other authorizations required to perform its obligations under this
Agreement and shall ensure that all employees, agents, and subcontractors secure and maintain
at all times during the term of their employment, agency or subcontractor, all license,
certifications, permits and other authorizations required to perform their obligations in relation
to this Agreement.

. Publicity: Any Publicity regarding the subject matter of this Agreement may not be released
without prior written approval from the Department. For purposes of this agreement, “Publicity”

Page 14 of 23



means notices, informational pamphlets, press releases, email responses, research, reports,
signs, and similar public notices prepared by or for the Grantee or jointly with others.

a. Grantee shall obtain written approval prior to issuing any press release or making any
public announcement regarding this agreement. Grantee agrees to obtain approval of the
Department in advance with respect to all Public Relations, all communications with
media, or all communications with any other member of the public with respect to this
agreement, except to acknowledge that an agreement does exist.

b. For purposes of this agreement, “Public Relations” includes community refations and
means those activities dedicated to maintaining the Department's image or maintaining
or promoting understanding and favorable relations with the community or public at
large or any segment of the public,

C. Violations of either Article XX (QXa) or (b) shall constitute a material Breach of Agreement.

R. Data Sharing: The State intends to secure and collate specific data generated by Grantee under
this Agreement to use in support of the State's organizational, policy-making, and management
of public resource functions. State, in accordance with Exhibit E, attached hereto and
incorporated herein by reference, reserves the right to require Grantee and/or its subcontractors
to provide specific data relevant to the above-listed functions. Data provided by Grantee may be
incorporated into existing or future developed State integrated analysis tools or databases,
including but not limited to geographic information system (GIS) networks and databases
accessible by the public. Dissemination of data collected may include historical data and
projections based on such historical data. :

a. To the extent any data transferred as part of this Agreement is legally determined to be
the property of Subrecipient or its subcontractors, Subrecipient and/or its subcontractors
grants State a nonexclusive, fully paid-up right and license to reproduce, use, distribute,
do derivative works based on, and archive data transferred as part of this Agreement.

5. Venue and Choice of Law: This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance
with the laws of the State of New Mexico, without regard to any conflict of law provisions. Any
legal suit, action, or proceeding arising out of or related to this Agreement shall be instituted
exclusively in the district courts located in Santa Fe, New Mexico. The Parties hereby irrevocably
submit to the exclusive jurisdiction and venue of such courts in any such suit, action, or
proceeding. The Parties waive any objection to the laying of the venue of any such suit, action, or
proceeding in the district courts of Santa Fe, New Mexico, and irrevocably waive and agree not to
ptead or claim in any such court that any such suit, action, or proceeding brought in any such
court has been brought in an inconvenient forum.

[SIGNATURE PAGE AND EXHIBITS FOLLOW]
[THIS SPACE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]

Page 15 of 23



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed this Agreement as of the Department’s date of
execution.

APPROVED BY DEPARTMENT:

Cabinet Secretary, Wayne Propst:

Signature Date

Chief Financial Officer, Mackie Romero-

Signature Date

Local Government Division Director, Cecilia Mavrommatis:

Signature Date

AS TO LEGAL FORM AND SUFFICIENCY

General Counsel's Office:

Signature

{Print Name) {Title)

Page 16 of 23



APPROVED BY GRANTEE:

Entity Name

Official with Authority to Bind Grantee:

Signature

(Print Name) (Title)

Date

Fiscal Officer or Chief Financial Officer:

Signature

(Print Name) (Title)

Date

As To Legal Form And Sufficiency

Signature

(Print Name) (Title)

Date

Page 17 of 23



EXHIBIT A
Request for Payment Form and Certification

STATE DF oW M0
GRANT APPROPRIATION
Request For Payment Fomm
_ Exhibit A
L Grantes InTomaion sus e poo 5P Seheas 168 Foes B. Payment Computation
B Payment Respross Na,
& Cemoaa: B, e Snneers T o
2 Adtnenn: ) o e C. AIFP fmount (IF Appieabie) - 5 0en
b R D, Furds Requesied fo Thate: LI
T 5. Aumeunt Recpeatie this Pagangets _
F. Ravashn Mmoo (fspelicaiiey 5@
[+ Lonian MamaPhons ¥ 5.  Coart Balares $arg
& Gegrs Nex H [ Fa Regquast S Pogprertsres [ Appoanie}
= Frojes Tobe:
F {3 Expiration Date:

T TR O BB Rl e S oy o, Tt o 35, DN e SRR AT

W Certifications
! lhﬁwmm:ﬂmsmmhpmmmhw hawe basn met insucing bt red Bried te

D a smm-wwmmsmawmmsmAdm- =
b me-wmwm&mmmmmmmmwmm&
[ mwwmmswwmm
4 & e 0 aF ,mmmmmwhmm

D immwmmswwmmﬂymmdmﬁdwmmmﬁiﬁm
mmwmmmwoﬁwmmmmmnm'mwm

D lh@rﬂbyas‘ﬁ.‘yﬂmaﬂWMWWMhMWth.mwMﬂéﬂma
ma:mﬁmhm&mhw&ﬁmm

Grantwe Fiscal ifficer or Fresal Rowet (7 apolebie Grantes Represintative
Do Doz

Torme @ency Use Uﬁﬁi
RO DI LT box T i

i certdy that the Stee Sosncy Sraanss! and vender Se indormmaron SRS T Wk aAhoed Subsmtied information,

Severgd TNt

[THIS SPACE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]

Page 18 of 23



EXHIBIT B
Notice of Department’s Obligation Form

Neotice of Obligation to Refmburse Gragee =

DATE:

TO: Departiens Represectative: , Grant Manager
Granres Oitial Represeatative:

SUBJECT:  Notice of Oblization to Reimburse Gesmtee
Crzzar Nuyumber:
Grazme Tasenination Dats:

As the desizzated sepreseqtative of the Departoment for Goot Agreement anmber
£itered iy betwesn Granres and the Depattment, T certSfe that the Geaumes kas submitted w the Department the
fellowing thied party oblisation exeomted, weiting, by the thind party's sethosized sEprasentative;

Viendor ar Contractoe
Third Party Obligation Srmeumt:
Werndor ar Cootractae
Third Pasry ObFgation Amenat:

I coctify that the Mtz is issuing this Notce of Obligadon to Reimbnrme Gogtes for penmissible purposes within
e scope of the project description, subsct to all the terns and conditions of the shove refemtared Grast
ATTEEIHENT

Crramt Aopensnd Alians 4IPPiF applicabisy:

The Amezet of this Motice of Obligation:

The Tonl Amonnt of 2l Previonsiy Isted Noticss of Cblyatien:
The Toral Amoeesr of a7l Notiess of Obligaries o D . 3000

Dgre Comrase smetnsy wrgy exetad th2 saad grany awewnn, Bur e nraices poid By 1Be prant ofll ner s S She TNy Smoanr,

Drepartnent Rep, Lpproweg . —
Tide: __Grant Manager
Fpnatire:

Drate:

L S stoive m&,.»"o:lmdi:ec:Qz—g@mﬁ;ﬁeb@ﬂxﬁunxﬁoﬁiﬁgiﬂﬁmdbﬁm&pﬂ&hﬁsﬁezﬂﬂfﬁmh
andireet axpesses (ep. pendlyy foes o d mmemMMIm%,mm&a; Smligee of
boad sroceeds skall oot be allowed mnless ipecifically xohogzed by statete.

Revised 72025

(THIS SPACE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]

Page 19 of 23



EXHIBIT C
Special Conditions {If Fiscai Agent Required or Anti Donations Issues Exist)

The capital outlay oversight requires grantees’ accounting methods and procedures, including their internal controf
framework, to be scrutinized, so as to safeguard State capital outlay appropriations and assets acquired with such
appropriations.

This Capital Qutlay Special Grant Condition(s) Exhibit C is necessary pursuant to § 6-3b-1 et seq., NMSA 1978
(Public Finance Accountability Act) and MAPS Fin 9.2, due to the Grantees’ material weaknesses, significant
deficiencies, or findings that raised concetns as to the ability to expend grant funds in accordance with applicable faw in
the organization’s FY[20XX] audit. The Special Conditions identified below apply to the authorized agent, [insert the
Grantee or Fiscal Agent name].

letter or email. The Grantee shall submit the following to the Department in pursuit of prior approval: purchasing
policies and procedures, CFQ certification, documentation of management and program approval, policies and procedures
goveming purchasing and contracting, a copy of the current procurement and contracting policies, and documentation
regarding informing staff responsible for purchasing and contracting on such policies and procedures.

Budget - Provide documentation of approval of your current budget frorn DFA Local Government or other
authoritative agency. Provide policies and procedures on who is responsible for and how annual budgets (expenditures
and revenue) are established, monitored and adjusted. Provide z corrective action plan on how budget issues identified in
your audit will be/have been addressed. Also include documentation on how staff responsible for budgeting is informed
on budget policies and procedures,

Capital Assets - Provide a complete list of inventory including inventory control numbers and current location.
Provide policies and procedures on capital assets and inventory and specify how the proposed purchased items will be
included, tagged, and tracked in capital asset Inventory. Also include documentation on how staff responsible for capital
assets is informed on capital asset policies and procedures.

Travel and Per Diem - Provide policies and procedures on travel and per diem. Also include how staff who
travel and those responsible for travel reimbursement are informed on trave] and per diem policies and procedures.

Timely Audits — Provide policies and procedures on annual audits, Provide documentation on how and who is
responsible for insuring that annual audits are completed timely. Also include documentation on how staff responsible for
the annwal audit is informed on audit policies and procedures.

Cash Management - policies and procedures on cash management of federal funds. Provide procedures used to
draw and disburse federal funds. Provide procedures to reconcile draw amounts, deposits and disbursements; and to
prepare federal cash reporting documenis to ensure compliance with federal regulations.

The <Grantee> was required to, and has provided sufficient documentation regarding [insert specific names of the
Special Condition(s)], as referenced in the <Grantee>"s [20XX] Audit file. Therefore, the criteria to enter into this
agreement have been met.

Page 1 of 1 Revised 7/2025

[THIS SPACE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]

Page 20 of 23



EXHIBIT D

Project Budget Worksheet *
*(Provided separately when grant agreement issued to Grantee)

[THIS SPACE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]

Page 21 of 23



EXHIBIT E
Data Sharing Provisions

B

Exhibit E
Dazta Sharing Provisions for New Mexico Capital Outlay Agreements

Introduction:

This Data Sharing Provisions Exhibit { Exhibit’) is incorporated into the New Mexico Capital Outlay
Agreements (*Agreements”) between the State of New Mexico ("State”) and [Insert Pariner Namej
{"Partner”). This Exhibit outlines the terms and condifions under which dzta wall be shared between
the Parties to ensure compliance with New Mexico state laws and requlations, focusing on data
privacy, security, and compliance.

Definitions:

a. Authorized User: An employee, agent, assign, representative, independent contractor, or other
person or enfity authorized by Pariner or State 1o access, use, or disclose information through
this exhibit

b. Confidential Infformation: Alf data or information shared in confidence, with the expectation that it
will not be disclosed in an identifiable form. This includes data that is exempt from pubkc
disclosure under the New Mexico Inspection of Public Records Act (§ 14-2-1 et seq. NMSA 1978)
or other relevant laws.

¢ Data Storage: Elecironic media that hold recorded information,

d. Data Transmission: The process of moving information over a network from its source to one or
more destinations.

e. Direct identifier Records or data containing personal identifiers such as names, addrasses, and
social security numbers.

bl

Disclosure: Permission it access, release, fangfer, or otherwise communicie confidential
information by any means to any third parly, except as authorized by the Party that controls the
record.

g Encryption involves using algorithms to encode data, rendering # unreadable without a specific
key. It may be necessary during data transmission andfor storage.

h. Information: Any data, figures, statisfics, or other facts provided or leamed about someone or
something, including Confidential Information, that may be legally transmitted under this Exhibit.

i. Limited Dataset A data file that omits Direct Mdentifiers.

J.  Protecied Personally Identifiable Informafion: Sensifive personal details such as social security

numbers and financial account numbers, with specific exclusions as outfined in the Agresments,

Purpose;
The purpose of this exhibii is to promote fransparency, faciitate information sharing between the
parties, support better policy and decision-maki , and enhance public services through collaborative

1of2

[THIS SPACE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]

Page 22 of 23



Vi

daia analysis from various sources.
Use of Information:

& Use of Information obtained or created under this exhibit shali be strictly limited to the purposes
stgted herein and in the agreements. The parties agree not io sell Information to third parties or
use it for commercial, solicitation, or political purposes.

b. Each Parly shall serve as the custodian of the Informafion and comply with all condifions for its
use, including security measures 1o prevent unauthorized access.

¢. The Parties shall follow alf refevant federal and state laws and regulafions goveming the use of
such Information.

Safeguarding Information:

a. Confideniiality. Access o Confidential Information shal ba fimited 1o the minimum necessary to
accomplish the purposes of this Exhibit. Authorzed Users must adhere to the confidentialiy
requirements.

b. Securily: Security praclices shall camply with the requrements of the New Mexico Depariment of

Information Technology Act and related reguiations. The Parties agree to notify each other within
three business days of any suspected or achual security breach.

. Information Storage and Transmission: Data Sorage and Transmission shall izke place or an
encrypted ssrver with appropriate security controls.

Re-Discloswre of Information:

The Parfies agnee not to disclose Information except as required by law or with prior written approval
of the oither Parfy. If there is a public records request, the Party receiving it shall notify the ciher Party
within three business days.

Crwnership of Information:

Legsl fitle to Information shall remain with the provider. The Partner granis the State a rovaly-free,

non-excliusive, non-transferable icense o use the Information in furtherance of the purposes oufined
in this Bxhibit

2of2

Page 23 of 23



V'l Uopoag WBIBaIBY JuRls Inok Jo T a8ed U0 51U} puzy ued noy, o 10} s) BuIpuny) ay) 1M s20)058p 1ew) adendue) aaneys|da) 1eioyso auy S| sl ‘eBen3ue uopelidosddy
"IUBWIBBIFE JURIF INCA U] JUnowWwe Sl y2aew mnoys siy ] “108faad siyy 1oy Aue Jnok o) PopJeME JUNOWE 1210} 8} 183UT Ny uopeldo)ddy

¥'Iuondag ‘Juawiaaliy weln ok jo  aed uo Sippul UBINOA o “Jaguinu gl psugisse s,108foud Jnok 33U7 qr1aeforg

*Aouage 10 ucez|ueBio 1ok jo awey a1 aug jetuepn Ayug

Wiay ayy Jo uoriad doy eyy U4 - uoheuwrou| 1aafoid Jajug i daig

wiod1a8png 10afosd annesiFaq SUOPRINNSU| H_Em,ﬁ_-n_eﬂ

:ieuojydo) SiusWWog 1euouppy
{  papung19, 10N unotly

T §] - B 8] - §] T % - § el
- $| - - $| - | - $ - $ dinbg/saoaa
- D : 2 I $ - s b3 ysiui3
N 4 - - 4 - ¢ - $ - ¢ uojonisuoD
;.ﬁ - 8- $ - % o ¢ - $ rumu_:o;«tmmc_m:my ugisag
: S| - s - g - $1 - 8 : $ guiuuelq
- $ - ) g C 3 B $ - T $3)PNIS 183UBLLIUCIAUT
N % N g - 3 N $ - ¢ - ¢ 88|pMs 120(d0103 121y
- §1- $1 - %[ - §] - $ : § HORISINBoY
- $ - $| - g - $| - $ - $ MOY B Juauteses
§1- Y B Y o £y _ - < 8 SUIEIY J03EM,

QD €0
21B(] 0] pap
0 7 10 312

3 aloid 110 b 123 e ea E 3 0% guip 0} pap oLy 059187 198Ny
- g JunoLy uonendorddy
Ha|RELIGIR
:3denguey uopendoiddy oweN Ayug

¥93png 199(0.d 3Ane)siSa - q AqIyxg



